MASTER AGREEMENT

Between

HURON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION/ MEA/NEA

and

HURON SCHOOL DISTRICT

New Boston, Michigan

for the period of

September 1, 2011

Through

August 31, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE		
1.	Agreement	1
2.	Recognition	2
3.	Extent of Agreement	3
4.	Duration of Agreement	
5.	Maintenance of Standards	4
6.	Continuity of Operations	
7.	Dues, Fees, and Payroll Deductions	5
8.	Financial Responsibilities	
9.	Professional Grievance Procedure	9
10.	School Calendar	
11.	Negotiation Procedures	12
12.	Definitions	
13	Assignments	15
14	Assignment Committee	15
15	Reduction	15
16	Seniority	16
17	Voluntary Layoff	17
18	Benefits for Voluntary Layoff	18
19	Association Rights	19
20	Department Chairpersons	
21	Substitute Teachers	21
22	Student Teachers	
23	Teacher Evaluations	
24	Rights of the Board	
25	In-Service Teacher Development	24
26	Teacher Rights	
27	Teacher Discipline	28
28	Student Discipline and Employee Protections	
29	Instructional Materials	31
30	School Equipment	32
31	Teaching Facilities	33
32	Teaching Hours	
33	Class Size and Teaching Conditions	
34	Cumulative Leave Days	
35	Noncumulative Leave Days	
36	Unpaid Leave of Absence	
37	Paid Leave of Absence	
38	Professional Compensation	
39	Insurance Protection	
40	Mentor Teachers	
41	Elementary and Secondary Education Act/ No Child Left Behind	49
42	Shared Staffing	49
43	Part time Positions	51
APP	PENDIX A Salary Schedule	
APP	PENDIX B Evaluation Instrument	
APP	PENDIX C School Calendar Days/Hours	
	PENDIX D Extracurricular Activities	
APP	ENDIX E School Calendar	
APP	ENDIX F Compliance Notification	
	TER OF UNDERSTANDING	

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Huron Board of Education, hereinafter called the "Employer" and the Huron Education Association/MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the "Association".

2. RECOGNITION

- A. The Employer hereby recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all professional personnel certified of the Huron School District, whether under contract, on leave, or on a per diem, hourly, or class rate basis, excluding substitute teachers, in the K-12 program. Such representation shall cover all personnel assigned to newly created professional positions unless the parties agree in advance that such positions are principally supervisory and administrative.
- B. Such representation shall exclude superintendent, adult education staff, principals, assistant principals, Chief Academic Officer, Chief Operations Officer, Director of Technology, athletic director, any staff not included in recognition section 2.(C) and 2.(D) and the titles of any other positions which are "supervisory" within the meaning of PERA. The terms "Teacher" or "bargaining unit member" shall include both certified and non-certified employees within the recognized bargaining unit set forth above.
- C. Certificate shall include a provisional, continuing, professional education, temporary vocational authorization, full vocational authorization, occupation and professional certificate with occupational education certificate. It shall include those individuals employed pursuant to Section 1233 (b) of the School Code of 1976, being Section 380.1233 (b) of the Michigan Compiled Laws and those individuals employed pursuant to an annual

- vocational authorization or other temporary approval as defined in the State Board of Education administrative rules.
- D. The bargaining unit shall include those teachers employed by the School District who are now assigned to the consortium programs, the Downriver Career-Technical Consortium which includes these school districts: Airport, Flat Rock, Gibraltar, Grosse Ile, Huron, Riverview, Southgate, Trenton, Woodhaven, and any other districts brought into the Consortium at a future date, and Special Education Consortium which includes these districts: Flat Rock, Gibraltar, Grosse Ile, Huron and any other districts brought into the Consortium at a future date. Such teachers shall retain the right to appointment in the regular education program, consistent with the rights provided by this Agreement, should the teacher be terminated by the Consortium Program due to a necessary reduction in personnel.
- E. The Employer agrees not to negotiate with or recognize any teachers' organization or union other than the HEA/MEA/NEA for the duration of this Agreement.

3. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT

- A. This agreement shall constitute the full and complete commitment between both parties. This Agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment to this Agreement.
- B. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee or group of employees shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

C. Copies of the Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the Employer in a format agreed upon by the Employer and the Association within thirty days after the Agreement is signed and presented to all teachers now employed, or considered for employment. The Employer shall furnish the Association with 30 copies of the Master Agreement for its use.

4. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification by both parties and shall remain in effect until midnight on the 31st day of August, 2015, for calendar and non-economic language. It is understood and agreed that the parties will bargain with reference to a new salary schedule for 2012-2013, 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 school years. The parties also agree to bargain health and life insurance benefits for the 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015 school years. With respect to the negotiations for 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015 on these economic subjects, the parties agree that they will bargain as though public Act 54 of 2011 applies to the salary schedule and all health and life insurances.
- B. If pursuant to negotiations, an agreement on the renewal (or modification) is not reached prior to the expiration date, this agreement shall expire at such expiration date unless it is extended for a specific period or periods by mutually agreeing parties.
- C. The Association or the Board will notify the other of their intent to open negotiations for a new contract by January 15, 2012, for salary and health and life insurance benefits. Any notice required hereunder shall be sufficient if mailed to the Board in care of the Superintendent of Schools or to the Association in care of the President of the Association.

D. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their daily authorized representatives the menth, day and year first below written.

HURON BOARD OF EDUCATION	HEA/MEA/NEA:
Bellier Haire	Span Kthinger
President	President
Secretary Tragues	Vice-President
alouter	Sharon Haham
1112-111	The state of the s
Date	Words to Patricipalis
	Team Member
	Team Member Mutalle
	1 cam strainer
	the tation invoces
	Keam Member
MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS	X 3/+

A. The duties of any teacher or the responsibilities of any position in the bargaining unit will not be transferred to a person and a member of the bargaining unit without prior negotiation with the Association.

8

B. The Board agrees to refinin flow employing teachers as permanent substitutes, lung term substitutes, teaching consultants and teaching coordinators or in any other capacity or with any other title where to do so would constitute an attempt to, or have the effect of, removing an exchalung a permanent full time or permanent part tone bargaming and position or work, teaching success, or similar position giving rise to tenare rights, from the bargaining unit or otherwise from covaring maker the collective bargaining Agreement, or which would result in the continued layoff of regular reachins to the School District, or which would result in the

reduction of salary, fringe benefits or the denial of the right to collectively associate and bargain on the part of the person assuming said position or formerly occupying said position.

6. CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS

- A. Both parties recognize the desirability of continuous and uninterrupted operation of the instructional program during the normal school year and the avoidance of disputes which threaten to interfere with such operations. Since the parties are establishing a comprehensive grievance procedure under which unresolved disputes may be settled by an impartial third party, the parties have removed the basic cause of work interruptions during the period of this Agreement. The Association accordingly agrees that it will not, during the period of this Agreement, directly or indirectly engage in or assist in any strike against the Employer (as said term is defined by the Public Employment Relations Act).
- B. Nothing in this Article shall require the Employer to keep schools open in the event of severe inclement weather or when otherwise prevented by an act of God.

7. ASSOCIATION UNION DUES, FEES AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION

- A. The Employer agrees to deduct from the salaries of teachers, dues or a representation fee for the Association (local union, HEA/MEA/NEA) when authorized in writing by each teacher to make such deduction. This authorization shall continue in effect from year to year unless altered by September 15.
- B. Dues shall be deducted in twenty (20) equal installments, beginning with the second paycheck and continuing with each check until paid in full. The Association shall give written notification to the Board of Education of the amount of the dues which are to be deducted that school year by September 15. Dues deducted for the Association shall be remitted after each deduction to the designated financial officer of the Association.

- C. The right to refund to a teacher, monies deducted from their salaries under such authorization, shall lie solely with the Association.
- D. The Employer will make payroll deductions, upon written authorization from a teacher, for annuities, credit unions, savings bonds, and/or any other plan or program currently in effect and new programs to be agreed upon by the Board and the Association. Said authorization designating deductions, shall be delivered to the payroll office on or before September 15. If, during the year, changes in the deductions become necessary, said changes shall be authorized in writing and presented to the Business Office.
- E. Contractual salaries will be divided by 26 to determine the gross biweekly amount. This will be paid to the employee biweekly, less FICA, federal and state income tax, and any other deductions selected by the employee.
- F. All checks, including e-checks, will clearly indicate the reasons for all deductions.
- G. Should a regular pay date fall during a period when school is not in session, teachers shall receive the check due on that date on the last day prior to the recess dated the last day prior to the recess unless the cash flow of the District prohibits it. In that event, the check will be dated the day the check is normally due. This does not refer to the summer months.
- H. Summer paychecks shall be mailed to those individuals who are to receive them. All others may be picked up at the Business office during regular hours.

8. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Agency Shop - Mandatory Deductions

Each bargaining unit member shall, as a condition of employment, on or before thirty (30) days from the date of commencement of duties or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, join the Association, or pay a service fee to the Association pursuant to the Association "policy regarding objections to Political-Ideological expenditures" and the administrative procedures adopted pursuant to that policy. The service fee shall not exceed the amount of Association dues collected from union members. In the event that the bargaining unit member shall not pay such service fee directly to the Association, or authorize payment through payroll deduction, the employer shall, pursuant to MCLA 408.477; MSA 17.277(7) and at the request of the Association, deduct the service fee from the bargaining unit member's wages and remit same to the Association. Payroll deductions made pursuant to this provision shall be made in equal amounts, as nearly as may be, from the paychecks of each bargaining unit member. Monies so deducted shall be remitted to the Association or its designee, no later than twenty (20) days following deduction.

- B. Pursuant to Chicago Teachers Union V. HUDSON, 106 S CT 1066 (1966), the Association established a "policy regarding objections to political-ideological expenditure." That policy, and the administrative procedures (including the timetable for payment) pursuant thereto applies only to non-union bargaining unit members. The remedies set forth in that policy shall be exclusive, and unless and until such procedures, including any administrative or judicial review thereto shall have been availed of and exhausted, no dispute, claim or complaint by an objecting bargaining unit member concerning the application and interpretation of this article shall be subject to the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement, or any other administrative or judicial procedure.
- C. In the event of any legal action against the employer brought in a court or administrative agency because of its compliance with this article, the Association agrees to defend such action, at its own expense and through its own counsel, provided:
 - The Employer gives timely notice of such action to the Association and permits the Association intervention as a party if it so desires, and

- (2) The Employer gives full and complete cooperation to the Association and its counsel in securing and giving evidence, obtaining witnesses, and making relevant information available at both trial and appellate levels.
- (3) The Association shall have complete authority to compromise and settle all claims which it defends under this section. The Association agrees that in any action so defended, it will indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from any liability for damages and costs imposed by a final judgment of a court or administrative agency as a direct consequence of the Employer's compliance with this Article 8, but this does not include any liability for unemployment compensation paid under the Michigan Employment Security Act.
- D. Any bargaining unit member who is a member of the Association, or who has applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the Employer an assignment authorizing deduction of dues, assessments and contributions to the Association as established by the Association. Such authorization shall continue in effect from year-to-year unless revoked according to the procedures outlined in the MEA Constitution, By-laws, and Administrative Procedures.
- E. Upon appropriate written authorization from the bargaining unit member, the Employer shall deduct from the salary of any such bargaining unit member and make appropriate remittance for MEA financial services sponsored programs (tax deferred annuities, auto insurance, homeowner's insurance, etc.) credit union, savings bonds, charitable donations, MEA-PAC/NEA-PAC contributions or any other plans or programs jointly approved by the Association and Employer.
- F. Due to certain requirements established in recent court decisions, the parties acknowledge that the amount of the fee charged to non-members along with other required information may not be available and transmitted to non-members until mid-school year (December, January, or February). Consequently, the parties agree that the procedures in this Article relating to the payment or non-payment of the representation fee by non-members shall be

activated thirty (30) days following the Association's notification to non-members of the fee for that given school year.

9. PROFESSIONAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. A grievance shall be an alleged violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of the expressed terms and conditions of this contract.
- B. The Association shall designate their representatives to handle grievances when requested by the grievant. The Employer hereby designates the principal of each building to act as its representative at Level One as hereinafter described.
- C. The term "days" as used herein shall mean days in which school is in session, or during summer break, it means weekdays excluding Saturdays and Sundays.
- D. Written grievances as required herein shall contain the following:
 - It shall be signed by the grievant or grievant's;
 - 2. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation;
 - It shall cite the Section or Subsections of this contract alleged to have been violated;
 - It shall contain the date of the alleged violations;
 - It shall specify the relief requested.
- E. Any written grievance not substantially in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection shall not extend the limitations hereinafter set forth.
 - <u>LEVEL ONE</u> A teacher or the Association believing himself wronged by an alleged violation shall within ten (10) work days of its alleged occurrence (or reasonable knowledge of same) orally discuss the grievance with the building principal or appropriate supervisor in an attempt to resolve same. When a grievance affects more than one building, the grievance shall move directly to Level Two.

If no resolution is obtained within ten (10) workdays of the discussion, the Association shall reduce the grievance to writing and proceed within ten (10) days of said discussion to Level Two.

<u>LEVEL TWO</u> – A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or his designated agent as specified in Level One with the endorsement thereon of the Association. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, the Superintendent or his designated agent shall arrange and hold a meeting with grievant and the designated local Association representative to discuss the grievance. Within ten (10) days of the discussion the Superintendent or his designated agent shall render his decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the Association, the Grievance Chairperson of the Association and the principal of the building in which the grievance originated.

LEVEL THREE

- Within thirty (30) calendar days upon receipt of the Superintendent's decision, the Association may submit the matter to the American Arbitration Association in the event the decision is unsatisfactory to the Association.
- The arbitrator shall be selected in accordance with the rules, regulations and methods recommended by the American Arbitration Association.
- The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and conclusive and binding upon employees, the Employer and the Association; subject to the right of the Board or the Association to judicial review.
- 4. Powers of the arbitrator are subject to the following limitations:
 - a) He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
 - b) He/she shall have no power to establish or to change any existing salary schedule.
 - c) He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy or rule of the Board nor substitute his judgment for that of the Employer as to the reasonableness of any such practice, policy, rule or any action taken by the Board, except where such practice, policy, rule or action is in conflict with this Agreement.
 - d) He/she shall have no power to interpret state or federal law except as specifically mentioned in the Agreement.
 - e) He/she shall not hear any grievance barred from the scope of the grievance procedure.
- After a case on which the arbitrator is empowered to rule hereunder has been referred to him/her, it may not be withdrawn by either party except by mutual consent.
- If either party disputes the arbitrability of any grievance under the terms of this Agreement, the arbitrator shall first rule on the arbitrability of the grievance.

- The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties except each party shall assume its own costs for representation.
- All arbitration hearings will be conducted at the employer's central office unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.
- F. Should the Association fail to institute a grievance within the time limits specified, or fail to appeal a decision within the limits specified, the grievance will not be processed.
- G. Arbitration awards or grievance settlements will not be made retroactive beyond the date of the occurrence or nonoccurrence of the event upon which the grievance is based. In no event, however, shall the settlement be earlier than seventy-five (75) days prior to the date on which the grievance is filed.
- H. Matters in which a petition for review or appeal have been filed with the Michigan Tenure Commission pursuant to the Michigan Teachers' Tenure Act are not arbitrable. The rights afforded under the act are a teacher's sole and exclusive remedy once a petition/appeal has been filed and neither the teacher nor the Association may file or process a grievance which arises under the same circumstances, transaction or action.

10. SCHOOL CALENDAR

- A. The parties agree that all aspects of the school calendar, excluding the first day of school, are negotiable including length of the school year, and further agree that the school calendar shall be set forth in Appendix C. Any deviation shall be by mutual written consent.
- B. New employees may be required to report for two days of orientation.
- C. Employees shall have one week after the students' last day in which to complete their end-ofthe-year duties, but it is preferred that the report cards be completed first.
- D. The per diem compensation shall be based on a 184 day contract year.

If the State of Michigan changes the required number of instructional days or hours such that it impacts the negotiated calendar, the Huron Board of Education and the Huron Education Association agree to bargain over the impact.

E. Each trimester shall end with one half-day for students and a records day on the last day, providing the district is on a six hour day.

F. Rescheduled Instructional Days

- 1. It is understood and agreed that the school calendar as specified in the collective bargaining agreement has been constructed so as to maximize student contact time and achievement. However, the parties recognize that due to conditions not within the control of school authorities, such as, but not limited to, severe storms, fires, epidemics, or health conditions as defined by City, County or State health authorities, there may be days when pupil instruction is scheduled but not provided. Therefore, if the number of days of pupil instruction falls below the minimum required number of days and minimum required number of hours, as provided by this contract then sufficient day(s) of pupil instruction will be rescheduled and provided on a day(s) contiguous with the end of the school year unless otherwise mutually agreed between the district and the association.
- 2. It is understood and agreed that the rescheduling of days may vary from one level or one building to another dependent on the number of instructional days provided for each level or building. It may occur that elementary schools will be rescheduled when the middle and high schools are not. However, all levels and buildings shall be required to meet the minimum contractual days and hour requirements.
- 3. On such day(s) when pupil instruction is not provided, H.E.A. members will not be required to work. H.E.A. members will be notified by telephone no later than ninety (90) minutes prior to their scheduled starting time. H.E.A. members will be required to work on the rescheduled day(s) as if it were a regularly scheduled work day(s).
- 4. On the rescheduled work day(s), the School District will not pay nor will H.E.A. members receive any additional compensation, insurance benefits or fringe benefits under the Contract.

11. NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

- A. Representatives of the Employer and the Association's bargaining committees will meet on or before September 30 and various times thereafter as the need arises for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the contact and to resolve potential problems.
- B. The party requesting the meeting is to submit to the other, on or before Friday prior to the meeting, an agenda covering what they wish to discuss.

- C. Should such a meeting result in a mutually acceptable amendment to the Agreement, then the amendment shall be subject to ratification by the Employer and the Association provided that the bargaining committee shall be empowered to effect temporary accommodations to resolve special problems.
- D. While the parties will use their best efforts to conduct negotiations during hours when school is not in session, when negotiations are conducted during regular school hours, release time shall be provided for the Association's negotiating committee.
- E. Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party. The parties mutually pledge that their representatives will be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations.
- F. There shall be six signed copies of any final agreement. One copy shall be retained by the Employer, four by the Association and one by the Superintendent.

12. **DEFINITION OF TERMS**

School Year - As defined by calendar.

School Attendance - This is according to the School calendar.

Days - Days when teachers are required to be in attendance.

Calendar Days - Monday through Sunday.

Normal Duty Day - May not exceed seven (7) hours thirty (30) minutes.

Staff members - All teachers and administrators.

13. ASSIGNMENTS

- A. The Employer agrees that employees shall not be assigned outside the scope of their teaching certificate, or in an area where they are not highly qualified within the meaning of the ESEA/NCLB Acts.
- B. It is desirable that employees have a firm assignment by May 15. However, changes in (1) financial conditions, (2) course demands because of student course selection process, (3) termination of staff, and (4) student population may require that the present staff assignments be changed temporarily to adjust to new situations.
- C. Through the procedures of the assignment committee, all teachers affected by the need for adjustment will have an opportunity to share in the decision making about assignments.

D. Posting Procedures

Whenever a vacancy, as defined in this Article 13, Assignments, occurs during the school year the district shall inform the HEA members by posting a written notice of the vacancy for a period of not less than ten teachers' work days on the HEA and office bulletin boards.

During the summer the posting shall be e-mailed or mailed to HEA members fourteen calendar days in advance of the filling of the position unless the member has indicated in writing that he/she does not wish to receive any postings during the summer.

Beginning August 1 each year the district shall notify HEA members of a vacancy but may immediately fill it.

DEFINITIONS

Vacancy - When new staff members will be added. Conditions which will result in a vacancy could be (1) with an improvement in economic situation, additional course offering will necessitate additional staff; (2) when an employee leaves the district and improved economic

situations allow for filling the vacancy by adding staff; and (3) when an employee leaves the district, there is no one among the professional staff with the required certification.

Assignments - The May 15 tentative placement in a building grade level, program or subject area or specific courses.

Reassignment - Any change in assignment after May 15.

Transfer - An employee desiring transfer to a different class, building, or position shall request such in writing by March 15, on forms furnished by the Assignment Committee, one copy of which shall be filed with the Superintendent, and one with the Assignment Committee and one with the local Association. The application shall set forth the reasons, if any, for transfer, school, grade, position sought, and the applicant's certification. Such requests shall be renewed annually by the teacher to retain active consideration by the Assignment Committee.

14. ASSIGNMENT COMMITTEE

A committee shall be formed for the purpose of determining assignments, reassignments and the filling of vacancies. The committee shall consist of four (4) members selected by the Association and four (4) administrators selected by the Superintendent. Meetings will be called by the Superintendent within five (5) days of notification of change of staffing. The Committee shall review available options and render a decision. In the event that no decision can be reached by the committee the Superintendent shall make the decision. Bargaining unit members shall have three (3) days in which to file appeals and present additional information for reconsideration.

REDUCTION

In the event that a teacher reduction becomes necessary or apparent in the opinion of the Employer, the following criteria and procedure shall be used:

- No employee will be laid off for the first (1st) trimester unless he/she has been informed of such discontinuance prior to May 1.
- Following the start of the school year, in the event that a professional staff reduction becomes necessary due to unexpected change in funding or a decrease in student enrollment, the Employer may initiate staff reductions or layoffs effective the beginning of the second (2nd) trimester with forty-five (45) calendar days notification to be given.
- Should financial conditions necessitate a reduction in staff, the Assignment Committee will follow the same procedure as for assignments. When the Employer establishes system-wide needs, it will also be determining the number of teachers needed for the following year. The Employer and the Association will fully explore all reasonable avenues for the placement of teachers before deciding on reduction. The Assignment Committee will then have a specific number of teachers to place in position, and place those tenured teachers with highest seniority first in positions for which they are certified.
- Exceptions may be made for those areas of special certification; such as vocationally reimbursable, counselors, and specialized certification.
- 5) The Employer, whenever possible, will consider placing employees with specialized certification in reimbursable areas in order to retain more teachers in the district.

16. SENIORITY

- A. Seniority shall be defined as the length of employment as an employee in the Huron School District.
- B. Seniority date shall be the day/date that the board officially approves the hiring of the teacher or the first day of work as a bargaining unit member, whichever come first.
- C. When several employees have the same seniority date, those with the greatest number of years of teaching experience in a public school will have the greatest seniority. If the number of years of experience are equal, those with the highest educational degree will have the highest seniority.
- D. If the years of experience and educational achievement are the same, seniority will be determined by a lottery.

- E. A district-wide seniority list shall be established by the Employer by the beginning of each school year and posted in each building for verification by the local Association. This list shall include seniority and seniority date.
- F. Teachers on leaves will be placed on the seniority list according to the terms of the leave policy.
- G. Administrators in the district who have tenure as a teacher shall be granted years of seniority on the following basis:
- Administrators who taught previously in the district shall be granted credit for all of their teaching experience plus their administrative experience within the district.
- Administrators who have not taught in the district shall be granted credit for their district administrative experience.

17. VOLUNTARY LAYOFF

- A. Should a reduction be necessary, teachers may volunteer for layoff, shared positions, or part time positions with the Assignment Committee's approval. The Assignment Committee will have determined that this reduction will not harm the educational program or add to the financial difficulties of the district. Such employees will receive full fringe benefits. Upon return to the district, they will accrue the seniority as if they had taught in the district and return to the same or like positions. All voluntary layoffs, shared positions, and part time positions shall be for the period of one school year, but may be extended each year if the proper approvals are obtained from the Association, the Assignment Committee, the superintendent and the Board.
- B. It is understood that if a teacher who was granted voluntary layoff fails to return to his/her employment at the end of said voluntary layoff, that teacher shall be terminated through

resignation. Voluntary layoffs may be granted for up to one year and may be extended annually by the Assignment Committee.

18. BENEFITS FOR INVOLUNTARY LAYOFF

- A. Laid off teachers will be recalled to the first teaching vacancy for which they are certified in the reverse order of the release. Wherever possible, the employee shall be returned to the same position or a position of like nature. No loss of experience factor granted by the district or tenure shall occur. It is understood that the Employer will notify, by certified mail, a teacher who is to be recalled at the last known address of said teacher. The recalled teacher shall have ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the notice of recall to accept the offered position. A rejection of a full time position or failure to respond in ten (10) calendar days will be considered a resignation, provided that if a vacancy occurs during the school year, an individual may refuse that position for said school year.
- B. An employee desiring to substitute teach shall notify the District in writing and shall, if he/she desires, have priority on the substitute list, according to seniority.
- C. Provisions for early retirement shall be made for the employee who may wish to do so, providing there is no conflict with established state retirement policies.
- D. Any tenured teacher who would have qualified for retirement during the reduction year, shall be permitted to teach that year so as to acquire needed service.
- E. Leaves of absence will be granted by the Employer upon written request when reduction of staff is necessary.
- F. Laid off employees shall receive salary and benefits accrued during the previous school year through August 31. If mid year lay off is necessary, then they shall receive the salary earned to date plus benefits prorated for the number of days worked.

G. Laid off teachers may elect to continue insurance benefits at their own expense.

19. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- A. The local Association and its representatives shall have the right to use school buildings at all reasonable hours for meetings, provided that when special custodial service is required, the Employer may make a reasonable charge therefore. No charge shall be made for use of school rooms. The local Association shall provide the Board with dates and places of regularly scheduled meetings by September 15.
- B. Duly authorized representatives of the Association and their respective affiliates shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property at all reasonable times, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.
- C. The local Association shall have the right to use school facilities and equipment, including typewriters, computers, copy machines, other duplicating equipment, calculating machines and audiovisual equipment at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The local Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use.
- D. The Association shall have the right to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on teacher bulletin boards, at least one of which shall be provided in each building. The Association may use the district mail service and teacher mail boxes for communication to teachers.
- E. It is understood that at no time shall students be involved in the dissemination of such literature, and such material shall not be made readily accessible to them.

- F. The Employer agrees to furnish to the Association in response to reasonable requests all available information concerning the financial resources of the district, including but not limited to, annual financial reports and audits, register of certificated personnel, tentative budgetary requirements and allocations (including county allocation board budgets), agenda, expanded resumes and minutes of all Board meetings, treasurer's reports, census and membership data, names and addresses of all teachers, salaries paid thereto and educational background, contracts held with other employee groups in the district and such other information as will assist the Association in developing intelligent, accurate, informed and constructive programs on behalf of the teachers and their students, together with information which may be necessary for the Association to process any grievance or complaint.
- G. The Board shall place on the agenda of each regular Board meeting any matters brought to its attention by the Association so long as those matters are made known to the superintendent's office five (5) days prior to the said regular meeting.

20. DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSONS

- A. The employees in any department in the junior high school or middle school or senior high school level may each year select from among their numbers a department chairperson. In those departments of a school having less than five members, a department chairperson shall be selected among all teachers in similar departments in the district. The department chairperson shall exercise the coordination of programs and materials and shall serve as instructional liaison between the teachers of the department and the school administration. Such chairperson shall not be considered an executive or supervisory employee.
- B. Any employee selected as a department chairperson may be assigned one less class period per day.

21. SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

- A. The use of regular teachers as substitute teachers shall be avoided whenever possible. In the event regular teachers covered by this agreement are used as substitutes on an emergency and voluntary basis, said teachers shall be compensated at the rate of \$20.00 for each teaching hour provided. Anyone taking a double class shall be paid \$20.00 per hour for that work.
- B. The Board agrees to refrain from employing teachers as permanent substitutes, long term substitutes, teaching consultants, and teaching coordinators or in any other capacity or with any other title where to do so would constitute an attempt to, or have the effect of, removing or excluding a permanent full time or permanent part time bargaining unit position or work, teaching vacancy, or similar position giving rise to tenure rights, from the bargaining unit or otherwise from coverage under the collective bargaining agreement, or which would result in the continued layoff of regular teachers in the school district, or which would result in the reduction of salary, fringe benefits or the denial of the right to collectively associate and bargain on the part of the person assuming said position or formerly occupying said position.

22. STUDENT TEACHERS

No employee shall be assigned to supervise a student teacher unless the employee consents to such supervision.

23. TEACHER EVALUATIONS

A. The Employer and the Association agree that the effective performance of all school personnel is essential to the success of the school program, and such success is enhanced by procedures for assisting and evaluating teacher performance. In this regard, the development of an effective on-going program of evaluation is essential for professional growth.

- B. At the beginning of each school year, each employee to be evaluated will be furnished with a copy of the evaluation form to be used by the administrator and teacher to establish evaluation criteria as agreed upon by the Employer and the Association. (Attached as Appendix B)
- C. The professional performance of all professional staff shall be evaluated every year. The professional performance of non-tenured teachers, probationary teachers, teachers new to the district, and tenured teachers in the third year of their three year evaluation cycle shall be evaluated using Track I of the evaluation instrument. Track I and III evaluations shall consist of two observations at least sixty days apart. Observations shall not occur during the first two weeks of school, nor shall they occur during or prior to school events like holidays, homecoming, Applefest. (This list is illustrative and is not meant to be limiting or inclusive.)
- D. Observations and walk-throughs shall be conducted by the building principal or other qualified, trained administrator. Track I and III formal observation time for the school year shall be not less than sixty (60) minutes in at least thirty (30) minute blocks with the division of this time to be agreed upon by the employee and the administrator. If the parties cannot agree on an appropriate evaluation schedule, the administrator will note this fact on the observation form and will conduct the observation at reasonable times. All observations shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. All non-tenured teachers will have an agreed upon IDP at least two weeks prior to any observation.
- E. Within ten (10) days after the Track I and III observation, the employee and the administrator will discuss the observation and reduce it to writing. The employee shall sign the observation report upon receipt of the same. If an employee disagrees with the observation

- report, the employee may submit a written response which shall be attached to the observation report.
- F. Tenured teachers in good standing, in the first two years of their three year cycle, will be evaluated using Track II of the evaluation instrument. The purpose of Track II is three fold: To enhance professional growth, to promote reflection on practice, and to positively impact student learning. The teacher and the administrator will work collaboratively to ensure the continuous strengthening of components and elements within each of the four domains in the framework.
- G. A Tenured teacher, who determines the need for assistance in some area of his/her professional duties, may voluntarily seek support from the administration. Additionally, the association may provide the teacher with assistance, which may include collaboration with the teacher and the administrator in forming an individual development plan; and/or providing an experienced teacher as mentor.
- H. Track III is designed to offer specific professional development and may also be used to provide due process for disciplinary action and/or and individual development plan. (see article 27,D.)
- I. If there is concern about continued employment of an employee, said teacher shall be notified in writing after the final observation and prior to the formal evaluation of said concerns.
- J. Formal evaluations shall be written by the building principal sixty-five (65) days prior to the end of the fiscal year. Formal evaluations will reflect the content of the observations and other pertinent information consistent with the evaluation instrument. Upon receipt of the evaluation, the employee will sign the evaluation for submission to the superintendent.

K. Prior to sixty-five (65) days before the close of each school fiscal year, each building principal shall submit to the superintendent a list of names of all teachers whom he/she recommends and does not recommend to be rehired for the coming school year. Said recommendations shall include in each case of non-renewal a list of the reasons for said recommendation. Each employee who is not recommended for rehire shall receive a copy of the reasons from the building principal.

24. RIGHTS OF THE BOARD

The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan, and/or the United States, including but not limited to the following: The management and control of school properties, facilities, grades, and courses of instruction, athletic and recreation programs, method of instruction, materials used for instruction and the selection, direction, transfer, promotion or demotion, discipline or dismissal of all personnel. The exercise of these powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, and the adoption of such rules, regulations and policies as it may deem necessary shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement. The HEA agrees to add the required language for the EFM but reserves the right to challenge the legality of the forgoing provision on the EFM.

25. IN-SERVICE TEACHER DEVELOPMENT

A. Professional development is a continuum of growth and learning activities that enhances professional skills and expertise for all educational employees, and which empowers the

- employees as they prepare students to be productive and adaptive citizens in an everchanging world.
- B. Professional development is an essential element of school improvement. Each building's Site-Based Decision Making Committee shall be composed of a minimum of one (1) teacher and one (1) administrator.
- C. The Site-Based Decision Making Committee of each building will be responsible for writing and submitting to the district, for submission to the State Board of Education in accordance with P.A. 335 of 1993, Section 1525 (3), the annual plan in order to obtain professional development funds. The required annual plan for professional development funding will be approved by the bargaining unit members of each building prior to submitting it to the State Board of Education.
- D. The SBDM Committee shall serve as coordinator of professional development funds and oversee the implementation of the plan for the professional development of all bargaining unit employees within the building. All expenses pertaining to the implementation of the professional development shall come from the professional development funds allocated to each building. The SBDM Committee may access additional sources of funding, if it chooses.
- E. All professional development training/activities should occur during the bargaining unit members' contract day. Every bargaining unit member shall be granted a minimum of four (4) half days to participate in professional development training/activities providing the total number of hours of instruction is consistent with contractual requirements.
- F. The building SBDM Committee will plan, organize, conduct, and approve all professional development training/activities for all building members. The building SBDM Committee

- may appoint subcommittees to assist in the professional development program/planning. In planning, the needs of the various teaching levels and disciplines will be considered.
- G. Bargaining unit members shall participate in professional development training/activities without the loss of compensation.
- H. Leave time and expenses may be granted to bargaining unit members to attend professional development opportunities other than local building or district activities, including, but not limited to, professional development programs of the State Board of Education, post secondary institutions, a RESA and other school districts.
- I. The Employer may grant a bargaining unit member leave from his/her responsibilities and provide a substitute teacher for the bargaining unit member to serve on the State Board of Education Committees, Commissions, Task Forces, Advisory Groups, etc. Such leave time will not impact other leaves provided for under the terms of this contract.

26. TEACHER RIGHTS

A. The Employer hereby agrees that every teacher shall have the right to freely join, organize, participate in, support or assist the Association in engaging in lawful concerted activities for the purpose of collective negotiations or bargaining with the Employer with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours or other conditions of employment and for other mutual aid and protection purposes as provided for in Act 379 of the P.A. of 1965, as amended, and as the same shall hereafter be amended. The Employer agrees that it will not interfere with, restrain, discourage or coerce any teacher in the employment or exercise of any rights conferred or guaranteed by Act 379 or any other laws of the State of Michigan or by the Michigan or United States Constitution. The Employer further agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment

or other conditions of employment by reason of his membership in the Association, by reason of his participation in any lawful concerted activities of the Association for the purpose of collective negotiation or bargaining or for other mutual aid and protection purposes provided for in Act 379, or by reason of institution of any grievance, complaint or proceedings provided for in this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.

B. Each employee will have the right to review the contents of his own personnel file. Confidential credentials are exempt from review by the employee. A representative of the Association may, at the teacher's request, accompany the employee in such review. The review will be made in the presence of the administrator responsible for the safekeeping of such file.

The personnel file may include:

Certificates Degree Verifications

Transcripts Evaluations

Reprimands Requests for leaves

Commendations Substantiated Complaints

Notice to teacher, provided it is noted that it is going in the file

Factual information for district operations

C. The personnel file will be in the central administration office and will constitute the only official documentation of an employee in the district. No materials, including but not limited to, evaluations, commendations, or complaints, shall be placed in a teacher's personnel file unless the teacher has had an opportunity to read the material. The employee shall acknowledge that he has read such materials by affixing his signature on the actual copy to be filed, with the understanding that such signature shall indicate his/her awareness of the material, but in no instance shall said signature be interpreted to mean agreement with the content of the material. If the employee believes that material to be placed in his/her file is

inappropriate or in error, the employee may use the grievance procedure to receive adjustment. If the grievance procedure determines the material to be inappropriate, it shall be removed. If the material is in error, it shall be corrected and retained in the file. Any reprimands or derogatory material shall be removed from the file after four (4) years of date of inclusion. Upon agreement of the teacher and administrator, papers may be removed from a file. If there is no agreement, then the teacher may follow the grievance procedure.

D. All teachers covered under the Agreement, who participate in the production of tapes, publications, or other produced educational material, shall retain rights should they be copyrighted or sold by the district, provided such work was produced after normal school hours.

27. TEACHER DISCIPLINE

- A. The Employer hereby agrees that no employee shall be reprimanded, disciplined, discharged, or reduced in compensation without just cause. All reprimands must be clearly identified as such. An employee shall be entitled to have present a representative of the Association when he/she is being reprimanded or disciplined for any infraction of discipline or delinquency in professional performance. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the teacher until such representative of the Association is present, provided the representative of the Association can be available within two (2) days. If the Association's representative cannot be available within two (2) days, the Association and the employee waive the right to have an Association representative present at the time of the reprimand or discipline.
- B. The Employer agrees to follow a policy of progressive discipline which minimally includes verbal warning, written warning, reprimand, suspension with pay, suspension without pay,

with discharge as a final and last resort, except when there has been a serious offense. The level of action taken against a teacher shall be appropriate to the behavior which precipitates said action.

- C. An administrator, upon receipt of any complaint from a parent, teacher, student, or employee about a bargaining unit member, shall meet with and inform the member of said complaint. No further action shall be taken until the complaint has been reduced to writing. The written complaint shall include the date the objectionable action occurred, the date of submission of complaint, and the nature of the complaint. The complaint may be investigated for up to ten (10) work days. No action shall be taken against the bargaining unit member, nor shall anything pertaining to the matter be included in the bargaining unit member's file, unless the complaint has been substantiated to the Employer's satisfaction.
- D. If discipline of an employee (excluding denial of tenure or placement on an additional year of probation) is to be considered because of inadequacies observed in the employee's professional work with students, such action must minimally be preceded by:
- Repeated observations of the inadequacies by more than one administrator through the observation process described elsewhere in the Agreement.
- Clear direction where the employee must improve and the consequences of failure to do so.
- Adequate opportunity for the employee to make improvements
- Intensive assistance from administrators and school district resources to help the employee improve.
- E. Extracurricular and athletic positions shall be excluded from provision D. However, no employee shall be discharged without just cause. Just cause shall be defined as meeting the conditions of Paragraph D, Sections 2 and 3, for the extracurricular positions only.

28. STUDENT DISCIPLINE AND EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

- A. The Employer recognizes its responsibility to give all reasonable support and assistance to employees with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline. Whenever it requires the attention of special counselors, social workers, law enforcement personnel, physicians or other professional persons or whenever it appears that a particular student in the class will impede the education of the balance of the class because of disruptions caused by said student, the Employer will take necessary steps to aid the teacher in his/her responsibilities to such pupil.
- B. An employee may exclude a pupil from class when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student in the classroom intolerable. The duration of the exclusion will be for the remainder of the class period at the secondary level. At the elementary level, an exclusion will be for one hour or until a conference is held between the principal and the teacher, providing adequate supervision is available.
- C. An Employee may, at all times, use such force as is necessary to protect himself, a fellow employee or administrator, or a student from attack, physical abuse or injury.
- D. Any case of assault upon a teacher shall be promptly reported to the Employer or its designated representative. If requested, the Employer will provide legal counsel to advise the employee of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault and shall promptly render all reasonable assistance to the employee in connection with handling of the incident of law enforcement and judicial authorities.
- E. Time lost by an employee in connection with any incident mentioned in the Article shall not be charged against the employee.

- F. If an employee is injured and unable to work as a result of acting within the scope of his/her authority as set forth in Section G of this Article, the Employer shall pay the difference between the amount received from Workers' Compensation and the teacher's daily rate for a period of 120 days, or to the end of the school year whichever is longer. Thereafter, the employee may use his/her accumulated sick leave.
- G. The Employer, in conjunction with the Association, shall promulgate rules and regulations setting forth the procedures to be utilized in disciplining, suspending or expelling students for misbehavior. Such rules and regulations shall be distributed by the Employer to students, employees and parents at the commencement of each school year.
- H. A written statement by the Employer governing use of corporal punishment and disciplining of students shall be publicized to all teachers no later than the first week of each school year.

29. <u>INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS</u>

- A. The Employer recognizes that adequate numbers of appropriate texts, library reference facilities, maps and globes, laboratory equipment, audiovisual equipment, art supplies, athletic equipment, current periodicals, standard tests and questionnaires and similar materials are the tools of the teaching profession. The Employer further recognizes that specialized programs require special materials in order to be effective. The parties will confer from time to time for the purpose of improving the selection and use of such educational tools, and the Employer will undertake promptly to implement all joint decisions thereon made by its representative and the Association. The Employer agrees at all times to keep the schools reasonably equipped and maintained to the best of its financial ability.
- B. Instructional materials used in the school district shall reflect the dignity and worth of all human beings.

- All materials adopted by the School District shall reflect the multi-ethnic nature of our society and a sensitivity to prejudice or stereotype.
- In evaluating instructional materials, the Employer and curriculum committees shall include the following criteria:
 - a) Does the material provide opportunities for full, fair and accurate treatment of minorities and women?
 - b) Does the material portray minorities and women in positions of leadership and roles of dignity?
 - c) Are fully integrated human groupings and setting reflecting equal status portrayed?
 - d) Are illustrations of minorities ethnically authentic?
 - e) Does the material reflect the contributions and achievements of minorities and women in Art, Science, History, Literature, and all life and culture?
- C. The Employer and the Association mutually recognize the importance of continuous use of adequate teaching reference material in maintaining a high level of professional performance. In furtherance of that recognition, the Employer shall provide a teacher reference library in each school in the district and include therein all texts which are reasonably requested by the employees of that school, to the best of its financial ability.
- D. Whenever possible, there shall be a functioning, staffed library in each school to supplement and complement the required curriculum.

30. SCHOOL EQUIPMENT

- A. The Employer shall continue to provide:
 - A separate desk for each employee in the district.
 - Locked space for each employee to store coats, overshoes and personal articles and instructional materials.
 - Chalkboard space in every classroom, where appropriate, to be cleaned along with erasers and trays not less than once per week or as appropriate and necessary.

- A copy, exclusively for each employee's use, of all required texts used in each of the courses he/she is to teach.
- 5) The Employer agrees to make available in each school adequate typing, duplicating facilities and a copying machine to aid teachers in the preparation of instructional material.

31. TEACHING FACILITIES

- A. The Employer will not require an employee to maintain, instruct, or supervise students in a classroom facility which is constructed or equipped in violation of any standards set forth in any bulletin published by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, statute, rule or regulation, nor will the Employer require a teacher to maintain, instruct or supervise students in a classroom facility that does not meet the "sanitary Standards for Schools." No teacher will be required to work, maintain or supervise students in areas deemed to be unsafe or unhealthy.
- B. At all times, the Employer shall provide in each building, the equipment necessary to ensure proper first aid treatment for the teachers and students.
- C. The Employer will provide, in each school, a room appropriately furnished and ventilated for use as a faculty lounge and will provide lavatory facilities exclusively for faculty use. In addition, the teachers' lounge will be furnished with a refrigerator and a microwave oven for teacher use. The Employer agrees to maintain the appliances in good working order.
- D. Each employees' lounge will be furnished with tables, chairs, curtains where applicable, and at least one couch.
- E. The Employer will assign designated free parking facilities to teachers as close to their teaching stations as existing facilities permit.

F. Telephone facilities shall be made available to employees for their reasonable use to confer with parents of the children in their class. All personal calls will be charged to the employees' home telephone number.

32. TEACHING HOURS

- A. In pursuit of their professional teaching responsibilities, the employer agrees that there is a need for research, planning, and meeting with parents, material gathering, and consultation with various specialists and other activities.
- B. The employees' normal duty day shall not exceed seven (7) hours thirty (30) minutes continuous time during the school year, with the understanding that:
 - Fridays or days preceding holidays or vacations, teachers may leave five (5) minutes after the student day ends.
 - 2. Employees may be required to attend one (1) professional meeting (building meeting, institute, or system-wide staff meeting) per week for not more than one (1) hour duration beyond the teachers' normal work day, except that in the case of an unforeseen emergency one additional meeting of not more than one (1) hour duration may be required during a given week.
 - 3. All employees will attend the in-service meetings when they are conducted during the normal school day. This includes the one (1) hour professional meeting for that week.

C. Secondary Schools

The normal daily teaching assignment in the junior and senior high schools will not exceed five (5) periods and one (1) unassigned preparation period of not less than one teaching period in length.

There may be a variation of the above teaching assignment when the following conditions have been met:

1. The building staff and administration shall develop a proposal.

- The building's HEA Membership shall submit the proposal to the HEA representative council. Upon the HEA representative council. Upon the HEA representative council's review and approval, it shall grant a written waiver of the language in C, above.
- At least seventy-five percent (75%) of the building's HEA membership shall vote approval of the proposal.
- 4. The proposal shall be submitted for review and final approval of the superintendent.

D. Elementary Schools

- Student-teacher contact time in the elementary schools shall include all times a teacher
 has effective control of the students during the regularly scheduled school day.
- There shall be one (1) unassigned preparation period of not less than one (1) "special teaching period" of 45 minutes in length per day. All time during which a teacher's students are in attendance in a special class may be used by the teacher as preparation time. (see letter of understanding dated 3/27/07)
- There shall be no fewer than five (5) a.m. preparation periods (prior to the start of the student day) of no less than twenty (20) minutes during each week.
- Teachers shall be provided no fewer than one (1) fifteen (15) minute recess/relief period each day (A.M. or P.M.). This daily recess relief period shall not count as teacher preparation time.
- Recess duty shall continue as currently established; not more than one (1) teacher shall be assigned to supervise each recess, and the assignment shall be in rotation.
- 6. In no event shall the kindergarten teachers teaching a full day of class have any less preparatory time than a grade 1-5 teacher. There shall be one (1) unassigned preparation period of not less than one (1) "special teaching period" of thirty (30) minutes in length per day.
- E. The use to which preparation time is put is solely at the discretion of the employee unless he/she is requested by an administrator to meet with him/her during that time. Such requests shall be made in advance and the meeting shall be of no more than ten (10) minutes in duration, unless extended by mutual agreement.
- F. All employees shall be entitled to a duty-free uninterrupted lunch period of thirty-five (35) minutes in length.

- G. No secondary teacher shall be assigned more than three (3) preparations per trimester whenever possible.
- H. To relieve employees of clerical, cafeteria, patrol, and bus duty, the employer agrees to engage aides to the best of its financial ability.
- I. Parent-Teacher conferences: Each building principal and staff shall establish the procedure and hours for said conferences. If the procedure and hours cannot be agreed upon, it shall be the duty of the Superintendent to review the staff's proposal and the principal's proposal. After a complete review of the same, it shall be his/her responsibility to establish the procedure and hours.
- J. Each member of the teaching staff is required to attend Parent-Teacher conferences except when excused by the principal.
- K. Junior High/Senior High Teachers may be assigned to restroom/hall duty during the five (5) minutes passing time prior to or following the teacher's planning period. The District will accommodate any teacher who has a health disability (e.g., smoke).

L. Zero Hour/Seventh Hour Class

- A Zero Hour/Sixth Hour Class is a high school class taught during the first, second, or third trimester of a school year for students needing credit provided by that class in order to graduate with their class.
- 2) It is different from a "fifth (1/5) teaching period assignment" as defined in the Teachers' Master Contract, Article 38, Section D; it is taught before or after the regularly scheduled classes of the normal school day.

- 3) It shall be posted in advance of its actually being taught and shall be awarded to the more senior bargaining unit applicant with the understanding that teachers shall not be assigned outside the scope of their teaching certificate as per Article 13, Assignments, Section A. No teacher shall be assigned to teach both a Zero Hour Class and a sixth (6th) teaching period during the same trimester.
- 4) A teacher accepting a Zero/Seventh Hour Class assignment shall receive additional compensation equal to one sixth (1/6th) of his/her contracted pay.
- 5) Educational programs such as PLATO (Credit Recovery), online classes, study tables, Ready-Set-Go! Summer camps, are exempt if run outside of hours of instructional hours and the school calendar."

33. CLASS SIZE AND TEACHING CONDITIONS

- A. The parties recognize that optimum school facilities for both student and employee are desirable to insure the high quality of education that is the goal of both the union and the employer. It is also acknowledged that the primary duty and responsibility of the teacher is to teach, and that the organization of the school and the school day should be directed toward ensuring that the energy of the teacher is primarily utilized to this end.
- B. Because the pupil-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program, the parties agree that the class size should be lowered wherever possible to meet the following maximum standards but in no event shall it exceed the following maximum standards except in traditional large group instruction or experimental classes and where the administration meets with the Association and the affected employee (s) to explore all avenues of alleviating the excessive class size.

Elementary Schools:

Academic classes	Kindergarten	27
	Grades 1-3	28
	Grades 4-5	30

Secondary Schools:

Academic classes	Grade 6	30
	7-12	35
Art classes	7-12	30
Industrial Arts	6-8	25
Industrial Arts	9-12	25
Vocational classes	9-12	Maximum State Requirement

Physical Education

7-12

If one class in Gym (One Teacher)

45

If two classes are in Gym (Two Teachers)

70

Swimming

State Guidelines

Elementary Art, Physical Education and Music classes shall consist of one classroom unit per session.

- C. Should it be necessary to increase the maximum class size as stated in Section B above, the teacher will be compensated an additional .02% (two hundredths of a percent) of the Master's Maximum salary per additional student on a daily basis until such time that the class size is lowered to the maximum size. The number of overload students in any elementary grade level or secondary course shall not collectively on average exceed two (2). (Compensation for co-taught classes with overloads will be shared between the two teachers). We agree, (that under no circumstances shall the daily compensation be over 1.0 FTE).
- D. The administration will as for volunteers to take a student overload beyond the number of two. In the event there are no volunteers, the administration may assign the overload student (s) in excess of two (2). In no event will a teacher have more than two (2) overload students in excess of the maximum class size for more than two (2) weeks.

E. All monies due a bargaining unit member because of an overload shall be paid at the end of each semester.

34. <u>CUMULATIVE LEAVE DAYS</u>

- A. At the beginning of each school year, each employee shall be credited thirteen (13) days of leave: eleven (11) days of sick leave and two days of personal business leave. The unused portion of sick leave shall accumulate from year to year to a maximum of 240. Personal business days may accumulate to a maximum of six (6) days. Accumulated personal business days beyond six (6) shall be transferred to the member's sick leave accumulation at the end of the school year.
- B. These leave days may be taken by a teacher for the following reasons:
 - Personal illness or disability.
 - *Illness in the household or immediate family (immediate family includes husband, wife, children, father, mother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandfather, grandmother, grandchildren, brothers and sisters): up to ten (10) days per year.
 - 3. Religious holiday: up to three (3) days per year.
 - *Death in the immediate family: Additional days beyond the five (5) non-cumulative leave days may be granted.
 - *Death of family other than immediate or the death of someone who was so close as to be considered family: Additional days beyond the three (3) non-cumulative leave days may be granted.
 - 6. Personal business: Two (2) days for those activities which cannot be scheduled for non-school hours and which are considered necessary for the maintenance of a teacher's nonprofessional life. Teachers must state in general terms the reason for requesting personal days on the form provided by the Employer. Personal business days may be used for illness only after a member has depleted his/her annual allotment of sick leave days and accumulated sick leave days.
 - * Additional days may be granted through the agreement of the employee and the Superintendent.

- C. Notification of expected absence shall be given to the school official designated to receive such notice, at least one hour before the employee normally reports for work. For a religious holiday or personal business day, twenty-four (24) hours advance notice shall be given whenever possible. A personal business day may not be used on the day before or after a school recess unless reasons for the necessity of taking this day are given to the Superintendent and permission is granted seven (7) days in advance of the intended absence.
- D. Upon returning from an absence, the employee shall fill out an absence verification form stating that date (s) of absence and the kind of leave taken. One copy shall be retained by the teacher and one shall be sent to the Board Office.
- E. Any employee who is not able to return to duty on the day following two (2) weeks of illness or disability shall, upon returning, present a certificate of ability to resume duties signed by a physician authorized to practice medicine, such certificate to be filed with the Superintendent upon return to duty. The employee may be required at Board expense to submit an additional certificate signed by a physician designated by the Board.
- F. All employees shall assign one leave day per year to a central sick leave bank, when the total number of days in the sick leave bank falls below five hundred (500) days. An employee may draw from this bank in accordance with the local Association Sick Bank Regulations, when his/her own cumulative leave is exhausted. No deductions shall occur from a teacher's paycheck upon notification to the Business Office that application has been made to the local Association Sick Bank committee until such time as denied by the committee or the final pay period in June. The local Association will render its decision at the next regularly scheduled executive committee meeting after the request is submitted.

- G. Employees have the option of transferring sick days from their personal accumulation to other district employees who have been diagnosed as terminally ill or whose spouse or child has been diagnosed as terminally ill, and have exhausted their own personal sick days and any days they are eligible to receive from the sick bank. In no event will the number of days donated by one individual exceed seventy (70) or in combination with other days exceed one school year.
- H. No leave shall be charged to an employee's allowance except for absence which occurs on days when teachers are on duty.
- I. If an employee terminates his employment prior to the end of the school year, deductions shall be made from the final salary check for leave used in excess of earned and accumulated days.

35. NON-CUMULATIVE LEAVE DAYS

- A. Death in the immediate family: leave up to five (5) days is allowed for each death. Additional days may be granted through the mutual agreement of the employee and the superintendent, with said days to be subtracted from cumulative leave. The immediate family is defined as grandparents, parents, in-laws, spouse, siblings, children, grandchildren and members of the employee's household.
- B. Death of family other than immediate or the death of someone who was so close as to be considered family: leave of up to three (3) days is allowed for each death. Additional days may be granted through the mutual agreement of the Superintendent and employee, said days to be subtracted from accumulative leave. In some cases where the employee is of necessity charged with carrying out the arrangements for the funeral and accompanying legal matters,

- additional days may be granted through the mutual agreement of the teacher and the Superintendent.
- C. Jury Duty: Leave will be allowed for an employee serving on a jury. The school will pay to the employee the difference between the amount received for serving on a jury and the normal daily rate.
- D. Court Appearances: Leave will be allowed to make a court appearance when the teacher is required by the Board to appear as a witness in court proceedings connected with school business, or when subpoenaed to attend court proceedings on matters not connected with school business. The school district will pay to the employee the difference between the amount received for such appearances and the normal daily rate.
- E. Visitations, Conferences and Conventions: the employee may visit other schools, attend education conferences or conventions under direct approval of the Administration.
- F. Local Association Days: the local Association will be granted thirty (30) days for use for Association business. The HEA President shall administer the use of said days.

36. UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- A. An unpaid leave of absence of up to two (2) years may be granted to an employee for the purpose of:
 - participating in exchange teaching programs in other school districts, states, territories, or countries
 - participating in foreign or military teaching programs
 - 3. furthering professional responsibilities or education
 - 4. maternity, paternity or adoption
 - 5. illness or disability
 - 6. personal responsibility

- Such leave may be extended at the discretion of the Employer. Additionally, the employer agrees to follow the rules of the FMLA.
- B. An employee desiring a leave of absence shall make written application to the Superintendent, including a statement of his/her intention to return to the school district.
- C. An employee shall have the right to continue his/her insurance benefits on a self-pay basis during the period of the approved leave provided the payments are kept current.
- D. By March 15 of the last year of his/her leave, the teacher shall notify the employer in writing of his/her intent to return to the school district.
- E. An employee returning after such leave shall:
 - be restored to his/her former position if possible, or to a position of like nature.
 - re-enter the salary schedule at the step immediately following his/her step before s/he went on leave.
- F. An employee shall not accumulate additional sick days, business days, or seniority during an unpaid leave of absence.

37. PAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- A. A Sabbatical leave may be granted for one year or one semester to a teacher within seven (7) years of employment in the Huron School District. The Employer may grant one year's leave at two-thirds (2/3) yearly pay, or one leave per semester at two thirds (2/3) semester pay. Before an employee is granted such leave, the following conditions must be met:
 - candidate must apply to the Employer in writing by April 15 and must submit a planned program of study.
 - If a Sabbatical is granted, the employer will select a candidate by the third Monday of May.

- B. At the conclusion of the leave, the recipient must return to the employ of the school district for a period of three (3) years or forfeit the pro-rated funds and benefits for the portion of the three years not completed.
- C. The employer shall continue the employee's fringe benefits during the Sabbatical leave.
 Upon return, the employee shall:
 - be restored to his/her former position if possible, or to a position of like nature;
 - be placed at the same position on the salary schedule as s/he would have been had s/he taught in the district during the sabbatical leave;
 - not accumulate leave time;
 - shall accumulate seniority.

38. PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- A. Newly employed teachers may be granted credit on the salary schedule for experience gained in any other accredited schools.
- B. Teachers employed under an annual vocational certification may be granted credit at the employer's option for appropriate work experience.
- C. Employees required in the course of their work to drive personal automobiles from one school building to another shall receive a car allowance equal to the IRS allowable amount per mile. The same allowance shall be given for use of personal cars for field trips, special meetings, or any other authorized school business of the district. Whenever feasible teachers going to the same destination should carpool.
- D. Secondary teachers accepting a fifth (5th) teaching period assignment shall receive additional compensation equal to ¼ of his/her contracted salary.

E. (1) Employees who have additional hours or additional degrees beyond the Master's Degree shall be compensated as follows:

BA/BS Degree	18 or more hours above	\$500.00
MA/MS Degree	6-12 hours above	reimburse certificate
		fee
	13-18 hours above	\$200.00
	19-29 hours above	\$400.00
	30 or more hours above	\$500.00
MSW	5% above MA at appropriate ste	ep
Ed. Specialist	10% above MA	

- (2) Any Ed. Specialist degree earned after August 30, 1997 must be in an area of the teacher's certification to qualify for additional compensation. Current employees with an Ed. Specialist degree are grandfathered.
- (3) Any current employee who has earned a Doctorate Degree in his/her area of teacher's certification, or who is in an approved Doctoral program as of May 15, 2004, is grandfathered, and shall be paid 20% above the MA.
- F. Upon retirement or death with ten (10) years in the district, or resignation with twenty (20) years of service in the district, or upon reaching retirement age, a teacher will receive one quarter (1/4) of per diem rate for 120 cumulative leave days; or, one eighth (1/8) of per diem rate between 101 to 119 cumulative leave days; or, fifty (50) percent of the then current substitute pay for each unused cumulative leave day between zero (0) and (100) one hundred days.
- G. Any teacher with twelve (12) or more years of service in the District at the end of the 1998-1999 school year who chose not to take the ERIP shall have their retirement incentive (46% of the 1998-1999 MA Maximum salary) "frozen" in whole dollars, payable upon their resignation from the District or upon their death.

Teachers who have ten and eleven years of teaching experience in the District shall be eligible for a retirement incentive in the amount of 10/12ths and 11/12ths of 46% of the

1998-1999 MA maximum salary, respectively. It shall be payable upon their resignation or upon their death.

- H. By mutual agreement of the parties, an ERI may be instituted at another time during the life of this contract.
- I. The parties agree that all employees electing retirement or otherwise resigning from the district and meeting the eligibility requirements under article 38, sections F and G, of the Master Agreement will receive employer contributions under the following conditions:
 - A. The execution of this agreement is consistent with the section 401(a)/403(b) plan established by the school district with agreement of the HEA and shall be referred to as "401(a)/403(b) Huron School Special Pay Plan" as amended in the 2003-2006 agreement. The plan is available for review in the district business office.
 - B. Employees shall not have the option to receive cash.
 - C. By June 15 each year, each eligible member retiring or resigning shall submit to the Huron School District business office the "Special Pay Plan Enrollment Form." A representative of National Insurance Services will be available to answer questions and provide assistance in filling out the paper work. 1-800-789-9058.
 - D. The employer will make the appropriate payment into each employee's 401(a)/403(b) Huron School Special Pay Plan no later than July 31, of the year in which the employee resigns or retires.
 - E. These payments to employees by the district will constitute employer contributions under 401(a)/403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).
 - F. In the event of the retiree's death or the death of an eligible member otherwise resigning, any balance not yet paid is to be paid to his or her designated beneficiary.
 - G. There are no costs to either the participant or to the district as outlined in the Special Pay Plan document.

39. INSURANCE PROTECTION

With the cooperation of MESSA, the School District will be the policy holder for all health, vision, dental and life insurances.

A. Health Insurance

Choices, \$20 office visit co-pay, \$100/\$200 deductible and \$10/\$20 prescription drug card. Dental and Vision plans with \$75,000 of life insurance, that will be payable to the teacher's beneficiary. Employee contribution will be 10% of the total cost of all health and life insurances.

(The contract for Health and Life Insurances expires August 31, 2012)

B. Cash in lieu of Health Benefits

Cash in lieu of health benefits is \$6,036 per school year. Dental and vision plans with \$75,000 of life insurance that will be payable to the teachers beneficiary. Employee contribution will be 10% of the total cost of all health and life insurances.

C. Cafeteria Plan (see letter of understanding Appendix)

The employer shall formally adopt a qualified plan document which complies with section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code that includes the following:

- a. Cash Option Plan
- b. Medical Spending Account
- c. Dependent Care Reimbursement
- d. Tax Deferred Annuity

A bargaining unit member electing any of the above shall enter into a salary reduction agreement.

Unexpended funds shall annually be contributed to the HEA Scholarship Fund.

D. All Costs relating to the implementation and administration of benefits under this program shall be borne by the employer.

40. MENTOR TEACHERS

- A. Each bargaining unit member in his/her first three (3) years in a classroom shall be assigned a mentor teacher by the administration with the approval of the mentor teacher. The mentor teacher shall be a member of the bargaining unit. The mentor teacher shall be available to provide professional support, instruction, and guidance. The purpose of the mentor assignment is to provide a peer who can offer assistance, resources, and information in a non-threatening collegial fashion.
- B. A mentor teacher shall be assigned in the following manner:
 - The mentor teacher shall be a tenured member of the bargaining unit with three (3) years
 of teaching experience in the Huron School District.

- Participation as a mentor teacher shall be voluntary.
- The assignment as the mentor teacher shall be finalized as soon as possible after the mentoree begins work duties.
- 4) Every effort will be made to match the mentor teachers and mentorees who work in the same building and have the same area of certification.
- Mentoree shall be assigned to one (1) mentor teacher at a time. A mentor may work with more than one mentee each year.
- 6) The mentor teacher assignment shall be for one (1) year subject to review by the mentor teacher and the mentoree after three (3) months. The appointment may be renewed in succeeding years.
- C. Because the purpose of the mentor/mentoree match is to acclimate the bargaining unit member and to provide necessary assistance toward the end of quality instruction, the Board and the Association agree the relationship shall be confidential, and shall not, in any fashion, be a matter included in the evaluation of the mentor teacher or mentee. Neither the mentor teacher nor the mentoree shall be permitted to participate in any matter related to the other. Further, the mentor teacher shall not be called as a witness in any grievance or administrative hearing involving the mentoree nor shall the mentoree be called as a witness in any grievance or administrative hearing involving the mentor teacher.
- D. When possible, the mentor teacher and the mentoree shall be assigned common preparation time.
- E. Mentor teachers shall receive a stipend of \$150.00 per year for each mentoree he/she is assigned to.
- F. Mentor and Mentee teachers shall be granted three days release time, to be shared per year for the purpose of work related to the mentee, the scheduling of which shall be with the

approval of the administration. Two additional days of release time may also be given in addition to the above.

G. The District will furnish the Association with a list of the mentors and mentorees.

41. <u>ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION ACT (ESEA)/NO CHILD LEFT</u> BEHIND (NCLB)

Without notice to the Association, the Board shall take no action to comply with the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, as amended, 20 USC 6301 et seq., that affects any bargaining unit member/s.

When further information is available from the State, the Michigan Department of Education or the U. S. Department of Education regarding the ESEA, both parties reserve the right to bring forth additional proposals to negotiate during the life of this Agreement.

42. SHARED STAFFING

- Shared staffing will be defined as two teachers sharing the responsibilities for one fulltime position.
- Prior to submitting their request to the Assignment Committee, teachers shall present a proposal to the superintendent or designee for approval by March 15; the proposal shall specify the following:
 - Division of the workday or workweek at the elementary level; at the junior and senior high levels, the number of classes each shall teach and the specific periods.
 - · The division of one set of benefits:
 - How the teachers will share planning and other responsibilities for the position;
 - Which staff meetings the teacher and principal have determined will require the teacher's attendance.
- Teachers shall submit their request for shared staffing to the superintendent and Assignment Committee (see Article 14, Assignment Committee), which shall determine whether to grant same. Approval shall be on an annual basis.
- Teachers may not file for unemployment benefits while working in a shared staff assignment.
- 5. A full year's seniority shall be accrued for each year worked.

- The salary shall be pro-rated to reflect the fraction of the position shared. Each teacher's placement on the salary schedule will be the same as he/she would be entitled to if employed on a full-time basis.
- 7. The district shall pay for one set of benefits (health, dental, vision, life) to be divided by the two teachers. The pro-ration of benefits may be the same as is the pro-ration of salary, or they may select any other division of fringe benefits as they may agree upon. The division of benefits shall be specified in the teachers' proposal.
- 8. Paid leave days will be pro-rated to reflect the fraction of the position shared.
- Teachers will attend open house and parent-teacher conferences. Attendance at building level meetings will be discussed by the teacher and the principal and will be at the discretion of the principal. The teachers should address this matter in their proposal to the superintendent.

Teachers shall be available for a pro-rated amount of time that may be required for meetings or conferences with students, parents, administrators, etc.

- 10. When a shared teacher substitutes for a partner who is absent and on a paid or unpaid leave day listed in this Master Agreement, he/she will be paid a pro-rated amount of the district's substitute teacher's pay rate.
 - Teachers may also cover each other's classes as they may from time to time agree to do so, but it shall be without the pay provided in <u>Article 21</u>, <u>Substitute Teachers</u>, where a teacher, during his/her planning period, fills in for an absent teacher.
- 11. If one of the two teachers sharing a position vacates his/her share of the position the remaining teacher shall return to full-time responsibility, with commensurate pay, benefits, etc.
- 12. Teachers may purchase any portion of the benefits not paid for by the district under this Article at the district's cost, through payroll deduction.
- 13. When a shared time position is terminated at the end of the school year the two teachers will return to full employment and be assigned in accordance with the provisions of Article 14, Assignment Committee.
- 14. A teacher hired as a bargaining unit member to fill a vacancy that is the result of the district granting a shared staffing position shall not be placed on the seniority list and shall accrue no seniority until he/she has completed his/her first day of work in his/her second consecutive year of employment as a bargaining unit member in the Huron School District. Having completed the first day in the second consecutive year of employment the teacher's seniority date shall be the day/date that the board officially

approved the hiring of the teacher or the first day of work as a bargaining unit member, whichever comes first.

43. PART-TIME POSITIONS

- Any part-time position shall be awarded to the most senior bargaining unit member applying.
 This part-time provision is not related to the part-time position provided under the layoff language.
- 2. Prior to submitting a request to the Assignment Committee, a teacher requesting a part-time position shall present a proposal to the superintendent or designee for approval by March 15; the proposal shall specify the following:
 - The number of classes requested.
 - Which staff meetings the teacher and principal have determined will require the teacher's attendance.
- Teachers shall submit their request for a part-time position to the superintendent and Assignment Committee (see Article 14, Assignment Committee), which shall determine whether to grant same. Approval shall be on an annual basis.
- 4. Teachers may not file for unemployment benefits while working in a part-time assignment.
- The salary shall be pro-rated to reflect the fraction of the position shared. The teacher's placement on the salary schedule will be the same as he/she would be entitled to if employed on a full-time basis.
- Paid leave days will be pro-rated to reflect the fraction of the position worked.
- 7. Teachers will attend open house and parent-teacher conferences. Attendance at building level meetings will be discussed by the teacher and the principal and will be at the discretion of the principal. The teacher should address this matter in his/her proposal to the superintendent.
- 8. The teachers shall be available for a pro-rated amount of time that may be required for meetings or conferences with students, parents, administrators, etc.
- For any portion of benefits not paid for by the district under this Article, teachers may purchase them at the district's cost, through payroll deduction.

- 10. The teacher will continue on part-time until a vacancy exists. The part-time teacher can not bump except as the result of a reduction; if the part-time teacher's work schedule is reduced from its then current parameters the teacher may return to a full-time position at the beginning of the next semester.
- 11. If a part-time position is not less than a half-time position the teacher will earn one full year of seniority. If the part-time position is less than one-half time the teacher will earn pro-rated seniority.
- 12. The building administrator will determine which classes will comprise any part-time position.
- 13. The teacher's written requests to return to a full-time position must be received not later than March 15, to meet the requirements of the Assignment Committee.

"APPENDIX A"

HEA Selary Schedule for 2011-2012 2.5% salary reduction Steps 0-9

STEP.	BA	RA+500	MA	MA+200	MA+400	MA+500	MSW	ED. 32.	ED:D
0	37954	38354	41455	41895	#3899	41095	43570	45545	49794
= 1	40467	40967	45529	45729	45929	46029	47805	50083	54634
- 2	43076	43576	48600	48800	40000	#9100	51030	53460	58320
= 3	45695	45195	51070	51270	53470	51570	53623	18177	81284
-4	48330	48810	54752	\$4952	55152	55732	57490	+0728	65702
:3;	50928	34438	52834	18034	38234	58334	60726	63618	69401
- 6	53538	54038	60908	83108	81308	81408	83954	36999	23090
7	55154	36654	63987	60182	64382	6.4482	67181	70330	76779
. 8.	58764	59266	0.7057	67257	67457	67557	70410	73763	80468
- 9	61373	- 81875	70133	20333	70533	70633	235.80	27186	84159
10	66781	67281	76409	76609	76809	76909	80229	84050	91691
TT.	67950	68450	27746	37346	78146	78246	81633	85521	93296
12	691.18	89639	20107	29302	29502	79607	83062	170t8	94929
13	20345	70849	80491	80691	83891	80091	34516	38541	96590

"APPENDIX B"

Huron School District Initial Professional Development Track 1

Who

The Initial Professional Development Track is designed for all newly hired teachers within the Huron School District. Teachers previously tenured in the state of Michigan will engage in this track for their first two years of employment (probationary period) and tenured teachers on the three year rotation cycle. All other new teachers, regardless of experience, will complete four years of the track (probationary period). In order to continue in the Initial Professional Development Track, teachers must have successful evaluations.

Purpose

The purpose of the Initial Professional Development Track is to:

- 1. Introduce beginning staff to programs, procedures, policies and expectations.
- Educate beginning staff on the Huron School District's domains within the Framework for Professional Practice at New Teacher Orientation.
- 3. Provide training and support for new staff.
- 4. Provide ongoing professional development experiences.
- 5. Promote professional self-reflection.
- 6. Evaluate performance for continuing employment.

Mentoring

New staff with less than three years of teaching experience will be teamed with a mentor teacher. The role of the mentor is to guide and support the new teacher through the probationary period.

Professional Development

New staff members with less than three years of teaching experience are required to complete 15 days of professional development, beyond those days established by the school calendar. As long as the professional development days are completed within the first three years of an individual's teaching experience, the 15 days could be a combination of days completed through Huron Schools, as well as days completed while employed by another school district.

Process

Pre-evaluation Conference

Teachers in Track I (non-tenured teachers and teachers on the three year evaluation cycle) will be provided with a copy of the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet, a copy of Danielson's Four Domains and the Rubric Framework for Professional Practice. Both the teacher and administrator will reflect on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework for Professional Practice using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment. The teacher and administrator will meet to review the self-assessment. This collaborative discussion will be used to establish goals for the Individual Development Plan (Track 1 for probationary teachers and teachers in the third year evaluation cycle.

Individualized Development Plan

A building administrator will meet with each teacher to develop an Individualized Development Plan based on the Framework for Professional Practice Pre-evaluation Worksheets.

Formal Observation

Two formal observations will take place in the following timeline:

- # 1 Observation Second Week of September through December
- #2 Observation January through April.

Within ten days of the formal observation, the employee and the administrator will discuss the observation and reduce it to writing.

Informal Classroom Observations

Three classroom Walk Through observations will take place in the following timeline:

- End of November 1st Walk Through completed
- End of February 2nd Walk Through completed
- End of March 3rd Walk Through completed

Information gained during the walk through observations will be sources of information for the summative evaluation.

2 Observation – January through April.

Classroom Observations

Three classroom Walk Through observations will take place in the following timeline:

- End of November 1st Walk Through completed
- End of February 2nd Walk Through completed
- End of March 3rd Walk Through completed

Information gained during the walk through observations will be sources of information for the summative evaluation.

Huron School District

Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet

Framework for Professional Practice

Both teacher and administrator will reflect on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework for Professional Practice using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet.

Carefully reflect on your/teachers performance in all four domains of the Framework for Professional Practice. Complete this Pre-Evaluation using the rubrics of the Framework to assess your level of performance in each of the elements by marking I, MI, E, or HE or in a manner that is most meaningful.

This collaborative discussion will be used to establish goals for the Individual Development Plan (Track I for probationary teachers and teachers in the third year evaluation cycle) or Professional Growth Plan (Track II for tenured teachers).

Teacher: Administrate				_ Date	:	
Key: I –Ineffective M	E-Minimally Effective	E-Effective	HE-	Highly E	ffective	
FRAMEWORK FOR PROFESSIONA	AL PRACTICE - FOUR DOMAIN	NS	1	ME	E	HE
Domain One: Planning and Prep	aration					
1a. Demonstrate Knowledge of C	Content and Pedagogy					
 Knowledge of content 						
 Knowledge of prerequisit 	e relationships					
 Knowledge of content-rel 	lated pedagogy					
1b. Demonstrating Knowledge of	f Students					
 Knowledge of characteris 	tics of age group					
 Knowledge of students' v 	aried approaches to learning					
 Knowledge of students' s 	kills and knowledge					
 Knowledge of students' in 	nterests and cultural heritage					
1c. Selecting Instructional Goals						
 Value 						
 Clarity 						
 Suitability for diverse stud 	dents					
 Balance 						
1d. Demonstrating Knowledge of	f Resources					
 Resources for teaching 						
 Resources for students 						
1e. Designing Coherent Instruction	on					
 Learning activities 						
 Instructional materials & 	resources					
 Instructional groups 						
 Lesson & unit structures 						
1f. Assessing Student Learning						
 Congruence with instruct 	ional goals					
 Criteria & standards 						
 Use for planning 						

Domain One: Planning and Preparation	- 1	ME	E	HE
1g. Utilizing Technology				
Expectations for use				
Domain Two: The Classroom Environment				
2a. Creating an Environment of Respect and Rapport				_
Teacher interaction with students				
Student interaction				
2b. Establishing a Culture for Learning				
Importance of the content				
Student pride in work				
 Expectations for learning and achievement 				
2c. Managing Classroom Procedures				
 Management of instructional groups 				
 Management of transitions 				
 Management of materials & supplies 				
 Performance of non-instructional duties 			7/ =	
 Supervision of volunteers & paraprofessionals 				
2d. Managing Student Behavior				
 Expectations 				
Monitoring of student behavior				
Response to student misbehavior				
2e. Organizing Physical Space				
 Safety and arrangement of furniture 				
 Accessibility to learning and use of physical resources 				
2f. Incorporating Technology into the Environment				
Management of materials and classroom interactions				
Domain Three: Instruction				
3a. Communicating Clearly and Accurately				
Directions and procedures				
Oral and written language				
3b. Using Questioning and Discussion Techniques				
Quality of questions				
Discussion of techniques				
Student participation				
3c. Engaging Students in Learning				
Representation of content				
Activities and assignments				
Grouping of students				
Instructional materials and resources				
Structure and pacing				
3d. Providing Feedback to Students				
Quality: Accurate, substantive, constructive and specific				
Timeliness				
3e. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness			-	
Lesson adjustment				

Domain Three: Instruction	1	ME	E	HE
3e. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness (cont.)				
Response to students				
Persistence				
3f. Providing Instruction in and through Technology				
 Integration of technology 				
Domain Four: Professional Responsibilities				
4a. Reflecting on Teaching				
Accuracy				
Use in future teaching				
4b. Maintaining Accurate Records				
Student completion of assignments				
Student progress in learning				
Non-instructional records				
4c. Communicating with Families				
 Information about the instructional program 				
 Information about individual students 				
 Engagement of families in instructional program 				
4d. Contributing to the School and District				
Relationships with colleagues				
Service to the school				
Participation in school and district projects				
4e. Growing and Developing Professionally				
 Enhancement of content knowledge and pedagogical skill 				
Service to the profession	9			
Use of technology				
4f. Showing Professionalism	7			
Service to students				
Advocacy				
Decision making				

Adapted from Enhancing Professional Practice: A Framework for Teaching by Charlotte Danielson, 1996

Pre-Evaluation Worksheet Summary: To be completed during pre-evaluation conference.

Noted Areas of Strength	Possible Areas of Growth	Suggested Growth Areas for Goal Setting

Huron School District

Individualized Development Plan

Track 1 - Probationary/Assistance

Teacher Name	Date
Administrator Name	Probationary 1 2 3 4
Goal 1 (define):	
Purpose of the Goal (explain):	The goal addresses the following domains of the district's Framework for Professional Practice (check all that apply): Planning and PreparationClassroom EnvironmentInstructionProfessional Responsibilities
Teacher responsibilities (list the expectations, state goal – include time lines where applicable):	rategies and activities that will assist toward achieving
Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of reas the administration):	sonable support and activities that can be expected fron
Goal 2 (define):	
Purpose of the Goal (explain):	The goal addresses the following domains of the district's Framework for Professional Practice (check all that apply): Planning and PreparationClassroom EnvironmentInstructionProfessional Responsibilities
Teacher responsibilities (list the expectations, str	rategies and activities that will assist toward achieving

the goal – include time lines where applicable):

Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of reasonable support and activities that can be expected from the administration):

Goal 3 (define):	
Purpose of the Goal (explain):	The goal addresses the following domains of the district's Framework for Professional Practice (check all that apply): Planning and PreparationClassroom EnvironmentInstructionProfessional Responsibilities
Teacher responsibilities (list the expectations, strategie the goal – include time lines where applicable):	es and activities that will assist toward achieving
Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of reasonable the administration):	e support and activities that can be expected from
Mutually developed by:	
ividually developed by:	
Teacher	Date
Administrator	Date

Cc: Personnel File, Employee and Administrator

Huron School District

Teacher Evaluation Track I Administrator Form

Initial Professional Development

Non-Tenured Teachers and Tenured Teachers on the three year cycle

Pre Evaluation Assessment Worksheet

Teacher completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator and teacher discussion and goal planning

Framework for Professional Practice - Domain Goal #1 Goal #2 Goal #3	1	ME	E	HE
Domain 1: Planning & Preparation				
Domain 2: Classroom Environment				
Domain 3: Instruction				
Domain 4: Professional Responsibility				
Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals)	1	ME	E	HE
Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-H	ighly	Effect	ve	
Artifacts Collected by Teacher to Support Goal Please bring artifacts or other indications of progress toward your goals to the final teacher/administrator conference. Teacher is responsible for keeping artifacts or ot progress throughout the three year evaluation track.	her ir	ndicati	ons o	f
Observation Comments:				

Walk Throu	gh Observations:			
Trimest	er 1 Date	Trimester 2 Dat	te	Trimester 3 Date
Summary of	Observation (e-C	ove)		
	owth – Multiple M			
Type of Mea	asure:	Type of Measure:		Type of Measure:
Growth		Growth		Growth
Ranking:	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective	Highly Effective
Recommend	dations for Contin	ued Employment:		
Recomme Recomme Recomme Not Reco	ended Conditional	lly		
	3 are checked aborofessional Develo		vement will be	e implemented for teacher in Track
Contract Cla	ssification for the	next school year:		
Date:			Signed:	Principal
				Principal
I have read t	his evaluation.		Signed:	Teacher
				Teacher

Frunch School District Initial Professional Growth Track II

Who

The Track II Professional Development is designed for temped teachers who consistently demonstrate successful practices in the four domains of the Examinant for Professional Practice.

Purpose:

The purpose of Track II is three-fold: to enhance pollessional growth, to promote reflection on practice, and to positively impact student learning. Every three years, from the first year of tenure status and continuing throughout a leacher's correct in the district, the teacher and supervising administrator will work colleboratively to ensure the continuous strengthening of components and elements within each of the four domains in the Framework for Professional Practice. This collaborative effort in Track II. foculates on two major press.

L. Demonstration of the Framework for Protessional Practice

Demonstration of the Framework domains, components and elements is an emigring process and is continually assessed by the supervising administrator through informal classroom observations and follow-op conversations, informal disriggue and other school settings such as: faculty investings, committee work, professional development activities, parent conferences, communication with parents, and/or extra-curricular activities.

2. Progress on the Professional Growth Plan

The second component of Truck it focuses on planning for Professional Growth based on the teacher's self-essessment. In a proactive and collaborative process, the teacher and administrator collaborate to identify three goals. Although the primary objective of this plan is the accomplishment of the goals, it is the process of working toward the goals that demonstrates the teacher's professional growth during the one-, Tawa- or three year period.

Process.

Pre-evaluation Conference

Seachers in Track II will be provided with a copy of the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet, a copy of Danielson's First Domains and the Rubric Framework for Professional Practice. Note the teacher and administrator will defeat on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework for Professional Practice using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment. The teacher and administrator will meet at the beginning of the school year to review and discuss the self-assessment. This collaborative discussion will be used to establish goals for the Track II Professional Growth cycle. The teacher and administrator will meet at the beginning of the school year to.

Classroom Observations

Three classroom Walk Through observations will take place in the following timeline:

- End of November 1st Walk Through completed
- End of February 2nd Walk Through completed
- End of March 3rd Walk Through completed

Information gained during the walk through observations will be sources of information for the summative evaluation.

Summative Evaluation Conference

The teacher and administrator will have a Summative Evaluation conference in the spring to review the results of the teacher's Professional Growth Plan. The teachers will provide a list of artifacts developed as a part of the goal accomplishment.

Huron School District

Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet

Framework for Professional Practice

Both teacher and administrator will reflect on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework for Professional Practice using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet.

Carefully reflect on your/teachers performance in all four domains of the Framework for Professional Practice. Complete this Pre-Evaluation using the rubrics of the Framework to assess your level of performance in each of the elements by marking U, B, P, or D or in a manner that is most meaningful.

This collaborative discussion will be used to establish goals for the Individual Development Plan (Track I for probationary teachers and teachers in the third year evaluation cycle) or Professional Growth Plan (Track II for tenured teachers).

Teacher: Administrator:		Date	:			
Key: I-Ineffective	ME-Minimally Effective	E-Effective	HE	-Highly E	ffective	
FRAMEWORK FOR PROFES	SIONAL PRACTICE - FOUR DOM	MAINS	I ME E		HE	
Domain One: Planning and	d Preparation					
1a. Demonstrate Knowledg	ge of Content and Pedagogy					
 Knowledge of conte 	ent					
 Knowledge of prere 	equisite relationships					
 Knowledge of conte 	ent-related pedagogy					
1b. Demonstrating Knowle	edge of Students					
 Knowledge of chara 	acteristics of age group					
 Knowledge of stude 	ents' varied approaches to learn	ing				
 Knowledge of stude 	ents' skills and knowledge					
 Knowledge of stude 	ents' interests and cultural herito	age				
1c. Selecting Instructional	Goals					
 Value 						
 Clarity 						
 Suitability for diver: 	se students					
 Balance 				(A)		
1d. Demonstrating Knowle	dge of Resources					
 Resources for teach 	ning					
 Resources for stude 	ents					
1e. Designing Coherent Ins	truction					
 Learning activities 						
 Instructional mater 	ials & resources					
 Instructional group. 	s					
 Lesson & unit struct 	tures					
1f. Assessing Student Learn	ning					
 Congruence with in 	structional goals					
 Criteria & standard 	s					
 Use for planning 						

Domain One: Planning and Preparation		
1g. Utilizing Technology		
Expectations for use		
Domain Two: The Classroom Environment		
2a. Creating an Environment of Respect and Rapport		
Teacher interaction with students		
Student interaction		
2b. Establishing a Culture for Learning		
Importance of the content		
Student pride in work		
 Expectations for learning and achievement 		
2c. Managing Classroom Procedures		
 Management of instructional groups 		
 Management of transitions 		
 Management of materials & supplies 		
 Performance of non-instructional duties 		
 Supervision of volunteers & paraprofessionals 		
2d. Managing Student Behavior		
Expectations		
 Monitoring of student behavior 		-
Response to student misbehavior		
2e. Organizing Physical Space		
Safety and arrangement of furniture		
 Accessibility to learning and use of physical resources 		
2f. Incorporating Technology into the Environment		
 Management of materials and classroom interactions 		
Domain Three: Instruction		
3a. Communicating Clearly and Accurately		
Directions and procedures		
Oral and written language		
3b. Using Questioning and Discussion Techniques		
Quality of questions		
Discussion of techniques		
Student participation		
Bc. Engaging Students in Learning		
Representation of content		
Activities and assignments		
Grouping of students		
Instructional materials and resources		
Structure and pacing		
Bd. Providing Feedback to Students		
Quality: Accurate, substantive, constructive and specific		
Timeliness		
Be. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness		
Lesson adjustment		

Domain Three: Instruction		
3e. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness		
Response to students		
Persistence		
3f. Providing Instruction In and Through Technology		
Integration of technology		
Domain Four: Professional Responsibilities		
4a. Reflecting on Teaching		
Accuracy		
Use in future teaching		
4b. Maintaining Accurate Records		
Student completion of assignments		
Student progress in learning		
Non-instructional records		
4c. Communicating with Families		
Information about the instructional program		
Information about individual students		
Engagement of families in instructional program		
4d. Contributing to the School and District		
Relationships with colleagues		
Service to the school		
Participation in school and district projects		
4e. Growing and Developing Professionally		
Enhancement of content knowledge and pedagogical skill		
Service to the profession		
Use of technology		
4f. Showing Professionalism		
Service to students		
Advocacy		
Decision making		

Adapted from Enhancing Professional Practice: A Framework for Teaching by Charlotte Danielson, 1996

Pre-Evaluation Worksheet Summary: To be completed during pre-evaluation conference.

Noted Areas of Strength	Possible Areas of Growth	Suggested Growth Areas for Goal Setting

Huron School District

Teacher Evaluation Track II Administrator Form

Professional Growth

Tenured Teachers Professional Growth Cycle

Pre Evaluation Assessment Worksheet

Teacher completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator and teacher discussion and goal planning

Domain 1: Planning & Preparation Domain 2: Classroom Environment Domain 3: Instruction Domain 4: Professional Responsibility Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals) I ME E HE Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Framework for Professional	Practice - Domain Goal #	1 Goal #2 Goal	#3	ME	Ε	HE
Domain 3: Instruction Domain 4: Professional Responsibility Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals) I ME E HE Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Domain 1: Planning & Prepar	ration					
Domain 4: Professional Responsibility Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals) I ME E HE Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Domain 2: Classroom Environ	nment					
Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals) I ME E HE Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Domain 4: Professional Resp	onsibility					
Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-Highly Effective Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Place Charlotte Danielson's d	omain component below (3 g	goals)	1	ME	Ε	HE
Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection					-		
Professional Growth Plan Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Vov. Unoffective	ME Minimally Effective	F Effective	UE Uiahlu Ef	footis.		
Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	key. I-menective	IVIE-IVIIIIIIIIIIIIII ETIECTIVE	E-Eriective	ne-nigniy Ei	rectiv	e	
Walk Through Observation: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Professional Growth Plan						
Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Troicssional Growth Flan						
Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date Trimester 3 Date Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							_
Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection	Walk Through Observation:						
Observation Reflection Meeting with Teacher and Administrator Teacher Reflection							
Teacher Reflection	Trimester 1 Date	Trimester 2 Date	Trime:	ster 3 Date			
Teacher Reflection			7201WH-100				
		ing with Teacher and Adminis	strator				
Administrator Reflection	Teacher Reflection						
Administrator Reflection							
Administrator Reflection							
Administrator Reflection							
Administrator heriection	Administrator Poflection						
	Administrator Reflection						

Please list and bring artifact teacher/administrator confe	s or other indications of p			ons of
progress throughout the thr	ee year evaluation track.			

Student Growth – Multiple Type of Measure:	Measures Type of Measure:		Type of Measure:	
Type of Medadie.	Type of Measure.		Type of Measure.	
Growth	Growth		Growth	
Final Summative Evaluation	Comments:			
			101	
Ranking Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective	Highly Effortive	
Kanking menective	willing Effective	Ellective	Highly Effective	
Date:		Signed:		
			Principal	
I have read this evaluation.		Signed:		
			Teacher	

Huron School District Specific Professional Development Track III

Who

The Specific Professional Development Track is designed for tenured teachers with less than satisfactory performance. This track will provide a good-faith effort to support and guide the teacher to meet the expectations set forth in the Huron School Districts Framework for Professional Practice.

Purpose

Track III is designed to offer specific professional development and may also be used to provide due process for disciplinary action and/or an individual development plan.

Formal Process (disciplinary or competency issues)

The teacher may be placed in the Formal Process because of, but not limited to:

- Failure to satisfactorily demonstrate the components and elements of the district's Framework of Professional Practice
- Specific policy or rule violation(s)
- · Competency issues

Pre-Evaluation Conference

Teachers in Track III will be provided with a copy of the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet, a copy of Danielson's Four Domains and the Rubric Framework for Professional Practice. Both the teacher and administrator will reflect on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet. The teacher and administrator will meet and review the self-assessment.

Individualized Development Plan

The administrator and teacher will develop a written Individualized Development Plan that will assist the teacher in improving the identified problem areas.

The plan will include:

- Goals relating to problem areas
- · Strategies for resolution of concerns
- Resources and support needed
- Timelines

Formal Observation

At least two (2) formal observations will be completed. Within ten (10) days after the observation, the teacher and the administrator will discuss the observation and reduce it to writing.

Classroom Observations

Three classroom Walk Through observations will take place in the following timeline:

- End of November 1st Walk Through completed
- End of February 2nd Walk Through completed
- End of March 3rd Walk Through completed

Information gained during the walk through observations will be sources of information for the summative evaluation.

Single Lesson Plan

Prior to each of the formal observations, the teacher will complete a Single Lesson Plan form and submit it to the administrator. The teacher will attach the Professional Growth Plan to the Single Lesson Plan.

Monitoring Progress

The administrator and teacher shall meet regularly to discuss the teacher's progress.

Evaluation and Conference

The administrator will complete the year-end written Summative Evaluation and conference prior to sixty-five (65) days before the close of the school fiscal year. It shall include an assessment of the teacher's progress in meeting the goals of his or her improvement plan.

One of the following recommendations will be made upon reviewing the teacher's progress:

- 1. The goal(s) were achieved in which case the teacher will be returned to Track II.
- There was some progress toward the goal. However, the progress was not sufficient. Therefore, the teacher will continue on the improvement plan and the use of Track III for the next evaluation process.
- 3. There was little or no progress toward the goals.

Huron School District

Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet

Framework for Professional Practice

Both teacher and administrator will reflect on teacher performance in all domains of the Framework for Professional Practice using the Pre-Evaluation Assessment Worksheet.

Carefully reflect on your/teachers performance in all four domains of the Framework for Professional Practice. Complete this Pre-Evaluation using the rubrics of the Framework to assess your level of performance in each of the elements by marking U, B, P, or D or in a manner that is most meaningful.

This collaborative discussion will be used to establish goals for the Individual Development Plan (Track I for probationary teachers and teachers in the third year evaluation cycle) or Professional Growth Plan (Track II for tenured teachers).

reacher:			Administrator:			Date	:	
Key: I	-Ineffective	ME-Minimal	lly Effective	E-Effective	HE	-Highly E	ffective	
FRAMEWOR	FRAMEWORK FOR PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE – FOUR DOMAINS				- 1	ME	E	HE
Domain One	: Planning and	d Preparation						
1a. Demonst	trate Knowled	ge of Content ar	nd Pedagogy					
 Knov 	vledge of conte	ent						
Knov	vledge of prere	equisite relations	ships					
 Knov 	vledge of conto	ent-related peda	igogy					
1b. Demons	trating Knowle	dge of Students						
 Knov 	vledge of char	acteristics of age	group :					
 Know 	vledge of stude	ents' varied appi	roaches to learn	ning				
Knov	vledge of stude	ents' skills and k	nowledge					
Knov	vledge of stude	ents' interests ar	nd cultural herit	age				
1c. Selecting	Instructional (Goals						
 Value 	е							
Clarit	ty							
 Suita 	bility for diver	se students						
Balai	nce							
1d. Demonst	trating Knowle	dge of Resource	es .					
 Reso 	urces for teach	ning						
Reso	urces for stude	ents						
1e. Designin	g Coherent Ins	truction	-					
 Learn 	ning activities							
 Instru 	uctional mater	ials & resources						
 Instru 	uctional group.	s						
• Lesso	on & unit struct	tures						
1f. Assessing	Student Learn	ning	444					
 Cong 	ruence with in	structional goals	s					
Crite	ria & standard	5						
• Use f	for planning							

Domain One: Planning and Preparation	1	ME	E	HE
1g. Utilizing Technology				
Expectations for use				
Domain Two: The Classroom Environment				
2a. Creating an Environment of Respect and Rapport				
Teacher interaction with students				
Student interaction				
2b. Establishing a Culture for Learning				
Importance of the content				
Student pride in work				
 Expectations for learning and achievement 				
2c. Managing Classroom Practice				
 Management of instructional groups 				
Management of transitions				
 Management of materials & supplies 				
Performance of non-instructional duties				
Supervision of volunteers & paraprofessionals				
2d. Managing Student Behavior				
Expectations				
Monitoring of student behavior				
Response to student misbehavior				
2e. Organizing Physical Space				
Safety and arrangement of furniture				
 Accessibility to learning and use of physical resources 				
2f. Incorporating Technology into the Environment				
Management of materials and classroom interactions				
Domain Three: Instruction				
Ba. Communicating Clearly and Accurately				
Directions and procedures				
Oral and written language				
3b. Using Questioning and Discussion Techniques				
Quality of questions				
Discussion of techniques				
Student participation				
Bc. Engaging Students in Learning				
Representation of content				
Activities and assignments				
Grouping of students				
Instructional materials and resources				
Structure and pacing				
Bd. Providing Feedback to Students				
Quality: Accurate, substantive, constructive and specific				
Timeliness				
Be. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness				
Lesson adjustment				

Domain Three: Instruction	1	ME	E	HE
3e. Demonstrating Flexibility and Responsiveness				
Response to students				
Persistence				
3f. Providing Instruction In and Through Technology				
 Integration of technology 				
Domain Four: Professional Responsibilities				
4a. Reflecting on Teaching				
Accuracy				
Use in future teaching				
4b. Maintaining Accurate Records				
 Student completion of assignments 				
Student progress in learning				
 Non-instructional records 				
4c. Communicating with Families				
 Information about the instructional program 				
 Information about individual students 				
 Engagement of families in instructional program 				
4d. Contributing to the School and District				
 Relationships with colleagues 				
Service to the school				
 Participation in school and district projects 				
4e. Growing and Developing Professionally				
 Enhancement of content knowledge and pedagogical skill 				
Service to the profession				
Use of technology				
4f. Showing Professionalism				
Service to students				
Advocacy				
Decision making				

Adapted from Enhancing Professional Practice: A Framework for Teaching by Charlotte Danielson, 1996

Pre-Evaluation Worksheet Summary: To be completed during pre-evaluation conference.

Noted Areas of Strength	Possible Areas of Growth	Suggested Growth Areas for Goal Setting		

Huron School District

Teacher Evaluation Track III Administrator Form

Specific Professional Development

Tenured Teachers Needing Improvement

Disciplinary/Competency (Individualized Development Plan)

n	Property.	Land to the same		
Pre	FV a	lliation	Assessment	Worksheet

Teacher completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator completes the Pre Evaluation Worksheet Administrator and teacher discussion and goal planning

Framework for Professional Practice - Domain Goal #1 Goal #2 Goal #3	1	ME	E	HE
Domain 1: Planning & Preparation				
Domain 2: Classroom Environment				
Domain 3: Instruction				
Domain 4: Professional Responsibility				
Place Charlotte Danielson's domain component below (3 goals)	1	ME	Ε	HE
Key: I-Ineffective ME-Minimally Effective E-Effective HE-High	y Ef	fective	e	
The goal addresses the following domains of the district's Framework for Professional Practice (check Planning & PreparationClassroom EnvironmentInstructionProfessional Goal 1 (define):		1866	23%	es
Purpose and Rationale of Goal (explain)				
Teacher responsibilities (list expectations, strategies and activities that will assist toward goal):	d act	nievin	g th	е
Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of reasonable support and activities that can be the administration):	e ex	pecte	ed fr	om

The goal addresses the following domains of the	district's Framewi	ork for Professio	nal Practice (check all that apply):
Planning & PreparationClassroom Env			
Goal 2 (define):			
Purpose and Rationale of Goal (explain)			
Teacher responsibilities (list expectations, str goal):	ategies and ac	tivities that v	vill assist toward achieving the
Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of r the administration):	easonable sup	port and act	ivities that can be expected fron
The goal addresses the following domains of the o			2000 AB the Theather Britishing A
Goal 3 (define):			
Purpose and Rationale of Goal (explain)			
Teacher responsibilities (list expectations, stragoal):	ategies and ac	tivities that v	vill assist toward achieving the
Administrator responsibilities (list type(s) of r the administration):	easonable sup	port and act	ivities that can be expected fron
Mutually developed by:			
Teacher	Da	te	
Administrator	Da	te	

Artifacts Collected by Teacher to Support Goal Please bring artifacts or other indications of progress towar teacher/administrator conference. Teacher is responsible to	rd your goals to the final for keeping artifacts or other indications of
progress throughout the three year evaluation track.	
Walk Through Observations: Trimester 1 Date Trimester 2 Date	Trimester 3 Date
Summary of Observation	
Formal Observations	
#1 Formal Observation and Feedback	Date:
#2 Formal Observation and Feedback	Date
#2 Formal Observation and reedback	Date:

Student Growth - Multiple	Measures	
Type of Measure:	Type of Measure:	Type of Measure:
Growth	Growth	Growth
Summative Evaluation (att Ranking: Ine		ffective Highly Effective
Recommendations for Con	tinued Employment:	
Recommended		
Recommended Condition	nally	
Not Recommended		
If items 2 or 3 are checked a Professional Development.	above, a program of improvement for t	eacher in Track III Specific
Contract Classification for th	ne next school year:	
Date:	Signed:	
		Principal
I have read this evaluation.	Signed: _	
	militarity primary rises	Teacher

Huron School District

Summative Evaluation - Administrator Form

Track III

Teach	er:	Building:		
Admin	nistrator:	School Year:		
	arize the following areas: ins of the district's Framework for Prof	essional Practice		
	Preparation and Planning	<u>essional Fractice</u>		
2.	Classroom Environment			
3.	Instruction			
4.	Professional Responsibilities			

Summarize the following areas:	
Individualized Development Plan/Improvement Plan (attach plan)	
General Comments	
Administrator's Evaluation:	
Recommended for continued employment?	yesno
Date of year-end evaluation conference	
Teacher statement attachedyesno	
Teacher Signature	Date
Administrator Signature	Date
cc: Personnel File, Employee and Administrator	

Student Growth

Multiple measures of student growth will be included in the evaluation. During the 2011-2012 school year the following will be used: Pre & Post Tests and a second measure from the list below. MEAP and MME school data will be added to the evaluation but will not be considered in each teacher overall evaluation.

Brown & Miller Elementary

- Pre & Post Tests
- DRA K-3
- Essential Skills Inventories
- MEAP 3-5 ELA, Math, Science, Social Studies (will be on evaluation but will not be figured into the evaluation during the 2011-2012 school year)
- Special Teachers (Pre & Post Tests, Skills Inventory, Project Based)

Renton Junior High School

- Pre & Post Tests
- Performance Based Projects
- MEAP 6-8 ELA, Math, Science, Social Studies
- Special Teachers (Pre & Post Tests, Skills Inventory, Project Based)

Huron High School

Psychologist

- Pre & Post Tests
- Performance Based Projects
- MME ELA, Math, Science, Social Studies
- Special Teachers (Pre & Post Tests, Skills Inventory, Project Based)

Counselor		
Library		
Social Worker		

"APPENDIX C"

HURON SCHOOL DISTRICT

DAYS AND HOURS OF INSTRUCTION

The Board of Education reserves the right to have fewer student days however; does not want to lose hours of instruction for students.

2011-2012 CALENDAR

Total student days = 174Total teacher days = 184

Total hours of student instruction time:

1,098 hours as required per Michigan

Department of Education.

2012-2013 CALENDAR

Total student days = 176 Total teacher days = 184

Total hours of student instruction time:

1,098 hours as required per Michigan

Department of Education.

2013-2014 CALENDAR

Total student days = 176Total teacher days = 184

Total hours of student instruction time:

1,098 hours as required per Michigan

Department of Education.

2014-2015 CALENDAR

Total student days = 176Total teacher days = 184

Total hours of student instruction time:

1,098 hours as required per Michigan

Department of Education.

"APPENDIX D" EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

- 1. Any member of the bargaining unit may apply for any extracurricular vacancy and shall be granted an interview. When notification of vacancy is received by the administration, they shall notify the Association Union President or his/her designee and post such vacancies on teacher bulletin boards in each building for a period of seven (7) days. If all predetermined qualifications are equal, the bargaining unit members shall be given preference over all other applicants. Once filled, a position will not be posted again until such time as the employee resigns, is dismissed or is unable to carry out the duties and responsibilities of the position.
- Any employee currently employed in an extracurricular position may not have his/her salary reduced from 1990-91 levels for the duration of this contract, so long as they are continuously employed in such position.

"APPENDIX E" Huron School District Calendar 2011-2012

August 29, 2011	First Day for Probationary Teachers (1st & 2nd year teachers)	
August 30, 2011	First Day for All Teachers Record and Work Day	
August 31, 2011	Teacher In-service/Open House Brown & Miller K- Parent Meetings	
September 1, 2011	Teacher In-service/ Back to School Event	
September 2 - 5, 2011	Labor Day Break	
September 6, 2011	First Full Day of School for All Students	
September 13, 2011	Renton Open House	
September 14, 2011	High School Open House	
October 11-27, 2011	MEAP Testing for all students 3 rd through 9 th grade	
October 14, 2011	End of 1st Progress Report	
November 2, 2011	Full Day of School for Students Evening Parent Teacher Conferences K-12	
November 3, 2011	No School for Students Morning Teacher Record Time and Prep for Conferences Afternoon Conferences K-12 & Evening Conferences K-5	
November 8, 2011	Election Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
November 23, 24, 25, 2011	Thanksgiving Break	
December 1, 2011	Students ½ Day of School End of Trimester 1	
December 2, 2011	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
December 5, 2011	First Day of Trimester II	
December 23, 2011 January 9, 2012	Holiday Break Begins at the End of the School Day School Resumes	

January 16, 2012	Martin Luther King Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
	reacher in-Service/Frotessional Development Day	
January 27, 2012	End of Second Progress Report	
February 1, 2012	Huron High School Evening Conferences	
February 2, 2012	Renton Jr. High School Evening Conferences	
February 20-21, 2012	Mid-Winter Break No School for Students and Staff	
March 6, 2012	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th Grade Students Only (no school for 9 th , 10 th , 12 th)	
March 7, 2012	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 9 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 10 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March 8, 2012	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 10 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 9 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March 15, 2012	End of Trimester II ½ Day of School High School Exams	
March 16, 2012	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
March 19, 2012	First Day of Trimester III	
April 5, 2012	Spring Break Begins at the End of the Day	
April 16, 2012	School Resumes	
May 4, 2012	End of 3 rd Progress Report	
May 11, 2012	Huron High School Prom Prep No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
May 28, 2012	Memorial Day	
June 13, 2012	Last Day of School for Students 1/2 Day of School	

June 14, 2012 Teacher Record and Work Day

Check Out with Building Principal(s)

Total Student Days-174 Full Days of School-171 Half Days of School-3

3rd Trimester-55 days 2nd Trimester-61 days 1st Trimester- 58 days

Total Teacher Days-184 Teacher Work/Record Days-4

Professional Development Days-5 Parent/Teacher Conference Day-1

Huron School District Calendar 2012-2013

August 27, 2012	First Day for Probationary Teachers (1st & 2nd year teachers)	
August 28, 2012	First Day for All Teachers Record and Work Day	
August 29, 2012	Teacher In-service/Open House Brown & Miller K- Parent Meetings	
September 30, 2012	Teacher In-service/Back to School Event	
Aug. 31-Sept. 3, 2012	Labor Day Break	
September 4, 2012	First Full Day of School for All Students	
September 12, 2012	Renton Open House	
September 13, 2012	High School Open House	
October TBA, 2012	MEAP Testing for all students 3 rd through 9 th grade	
October 12, 2012	End of 1st Progress Report	
November 6, 2012	Election Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
November 7, 2012	Full Day of School for Students Evening Parent Teacher Conferences K-12	
November 8, 2012	No School for Students Morning Teacher Record Time and Prep for Conferences Afternoon Conferences K-12 & Evening Conferences K-5	
November 21 - 23, 2012	Thanksgiving Break	
November 29, 2012	Students ½ Day of School End of Trimester 1	
November 30, 2012	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
December 3, 2012	First Day of Trimester II	
December 21, 2012	Holiday Break Begins at the End of the School Day	
January 7, 2013	School Resumes	

January 21, 2013	Martin Luther King Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
January 25, 2013	End of Second Progress Report	
January 30, 2013	Huron High School Evening Conferences	
January 31, 2013	Renton Jr. High School Evening Conferences	
February18 -19, 2013	Mid-Winter Break No School for Students and Staff	
March TBA, 2013	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th Grade Students Only (no school for 9 th , 10 th , 12 th)	
March TBA, 2013	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 9 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 10 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March TBA, 2013	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 10 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 9 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March 14, 2013	End of Trimester II ½ Day of School High School Exams	
March 15, 2013	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
March 18, 2013	First Day of Trimester III	
March 29, 2013	Spring Break Begins at the End of the Day	
April 8, 2013	School Resumes	
May 3, 2013	End of 3 rd Progress Report	
May TBA, 2013	Huron High School Prom Prep No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
May 27, 2013	Memorial Day No School	
June 12, 2013	Last Day of School for Students 1/2 Day of School	

June 13, 2013

Teacher Record and Work Day

Check Out with Building Principal(s)

Total Student Days-174

Full Days of School-171

Half Days of School-3

1st Trimester- 58 days

2nd Trimester-61days

3rd Trimester-55 days

Total Teacher Days-184

Teacher Work/Record Days-4

Professional Development Days-5

Parent/Teacher Conference Day-1

Huron School District Calendar 2013-2014

August 26, 2013	First Day for Probationary Teachers (1st & 2nd year teachers)
August 27, 2013	First Day for All Teachers Record and Work Day
August 28, 2013	Teacher In-service/Open House Brown & Miller K- Parent Meetings
August 29, 2013	Teacher In-service/ Back to School Event
Aug.30 -Sept. 2, 2013	Labor Day Break
September 3, 2013	First Full Day of School for All Students
September 11, 2013	Renton Open House
September 12, 2013	High School Open House
October TBA, 2013	MEAP Testing for all students 3 rd through 9 th grade
October 11, 2013	End of 1st Progress Report
November 5, 2013	Election Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day
November 6, 2013	Full Day of School for Students Evening Parent Teacher Conferences K-12
November 7, 2013	No School for Students Morning Teacher Record Time and Prep for Conferences Afternoon Conferences K-12 & Evening Conferences K-5
November 21, 2013	Students ½ Day of School End of Trimester 1
November 22, 2013	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students
November 27- 29, 2013	Thanksgiving Break
November 25, 2013	First Day of Trimester II
December 20, 2013	Holiday Break Begins at the End of the School Day

January 6, 2014	School Resumes	
January 20, 2014	Martin Luther King Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
January 24, 2014	End of Second Progress Report	
January 29, 2014	Huron High School Evening Conferences	
January 30, 2014	Renton Jr. High School Evening Conferences	
February 17-18, 2014	Mid-Winter Break No School for Students and Staff	
March TBA, 2014	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th Grade Students Only (no school for 9 th , 10 th , 12 th)	
March TBA, 2014	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 9 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 10 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March TBA, 2014	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 10 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 9 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March 13, 2014	End of Trimester II ½ Day of School High School Exams	
March 14, 2014	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
March 17, 2014	First Day of Trimester III	
April 17, 2014	Spring Break Begins at the End of the Day	
April 28, 2014	School Resumes	
May 2, 2014	End of 3 rd Progress Report	
May TBA, 2014	Huron High School Prom Prep No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
May 26, 2014	Memorial Day No School	

Last Day of School for Students 1/2 Day of School June 12, 2014

June 13, 2014 Teacher Record and Work Day

Check Out with Building Principal(s)

Total Student Days-174 Half Days of School-3 Full Days of School-171

1st Trimester-56 days 2nd Trimester-62 days 3rd Trimester-56 days

Total Teacher Days-184 Teacher Work/Record Days-4

Professional Development Days-5 Parent/Teacher Conference Day-1

Huron School District Calendar 2014-2015

August 25, 2014	First Day for Probationary Teachers (1st & 2nd year teachers)	
August 26, 2014	First Day for All Teachers Record and Work Day	
August 27, 2014	Teacher In-service/Open House Brown & Miller K- Parent Meetings	
August 28, 2014	Teacher In-service/ Back to School Event	
Aug 29-Sept 1, 2014	Labor Day Break	
September 2, 2014	First Full Day of School for All Students	
September 10, 2014	Renton Open House	
September 11, 2014	High School Open House	
October TBA, 2014	MEAP Testing for all students 3 rd through 9 th grade	
October 10, 2014	End of 1st Progress Report	
November 4, 2014	Election Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
November 5, 2014	Full Day of School for Students Evening Parent Teacher Conferences K-12	
November 6, 2014	No School for Students Morning Teacher Record Time and Prep for Conferences Afternoon Conferences K-12 & Evening Conferences K-5	
November 26-28, 2014	Thanksgiving Break	
December 4, 2014	Students ½ Day of School End of Trimester 1	
December 5, 2014	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
December 8, 2014	First Day of Trimester II	
December 19, 2014	Holiday Break Begins at the End of the School Day	
January 5, 2015	School Resumes	

January 19, 2015	Martin Luther King Day No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
January 23, 2015	End of Second Progress Report	
January 28, 2015	Huron High School Evening Conferences	
January 29, 2015	Renton Jr. High School Evening Conferences	
February 16-17, 2015	Mid-Winter Break No School for Students and Staff	
March TBA, 2015	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th Grade Students Only (no school for 9 th , 10 th , 12 th)	
March TBA, 2015	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME	
	9 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 10 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March TBA, 2015	Michigan Merit Exam (MME) 11 th MME 10 th Grade Full Day (AM testing, PM Classes) 9 th and 12 th PM Classes Only	
March 12, 2015	End of Trimester II ½ Day of School High School Exams	
March 13, 2015	Teacher Record and Work Day No School for Students	
March 16, 2015	First Day of Trimester III	
April 2, 2015	Spring Break Begins at the End of the Day	
April 13, 2015	School Resumes	
May 1, 2015	End of 3 rd Progress Report	
May TBA, 2015	Huron High School Prom Prep No School for Students Teacher In-Service/Professional Development Day	
May 25, 2015	Memorial Day No School	

June 10, 2015

Last Day of School for Students 1/2 Day of School

June 11, 2015

Teacher Record and Work Day

Check Out with Building Principal(s)

Total Student Days-174

Full Days of School-171

Half Days of School-3

1st Trimester- 63 days

2nd Trimester- 56 days

3rd Trimester- 55 days

Total Teacher Days-184

Teacher Work/Record Days-4

Professional Development Days-5

Parent/Teacher Conference Day-1

Compliance Information 2011-2012

ANNUAL ASBESTOS NOTIFICATION

In accordance with Section 763.84 of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), or the "Asbestos Schools Rule," Huron School District is notifying employees and building occupants, or their legal guardians, of activities conducted within the past school year involving the asbestos inspections, response actions, and post-response action activities, including periodic re-inspection and periodic surveillance activities, that are planned or in progress at School District facilities.

During the upcoming school year (the "2011-2012 School Year" - September, 2011 through March, 2012), Huron School District has planned the following activities related to asbestos-containing materials throughout the School District:

- Six Month Periodic Surveillances: Six month periodic surveillances will be completed every six months and continue on a regular six month schedule (next two scheduled rounds approximately September, 2011 and March, 2012)
- Asbestos Abatement Projects Scheduled: Because of the 2011 Bond Issue Renovations, there may need to be asbestos abatement projects scheduled
 when necessary to support renovations of building operations. Abatement will be completed by trained and accredited personnel.

During the previous twelve months (the "2010-2011 School Year" - September, 2010 through August, 2011), Huron School District completed the following activities related to asbestos-containing materials throughout the School District:

- Three Year Re-inspections: The EPA requires that each school district re-inspect all known and assumed asbestos-containing materials once every three
 years. The three-year re-inspection activities for all Huron School District facilities were completed in December, 2010. Therefore, the next three year re-inspection is due in December, 2013.
 - Six Month Periodic Surveillances: Six month periodic surveillances were completed in September, 2010 and April, 2011.
- Asbestos Abatement Projects Completed: Asbestos abatement projects were conducted at the following district buildings during the 2010-2011 school year:

Miller Elementary: February, 2011, patched and repaired roof drain insulation and removed pipe wrap insulation Renton Jr. High: July, 2011, removed pipe wrap insulation because of 2011 Bond Issue Renovations Huron High School: July, 2011, removed pipe wrap insulation because of 2011 Bond Issue Renovations Huron High School: August, 2011, removed the exterior auditorium fascia because of 2011 Bond Issue Renovations

AHERA Management Plans are available for review in each school building office or at the Huron School District Central Office. Summaries for all of the asbestos abatement projects conducted prior to the 2010-2011 School Year are located in the AHERA Management Plans, while complete documentation is also maintained in the Central Office.

Questions regarding the asbestos program for the Huron School District may be addressed to Ms. Carol Harman, Chief Operations Officer for the Huron School District.

SECTION 504 NOTICE

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as Amended, provides that no person on the basis of color, race, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, sex, marital status, or any otherwise qualified handicap shall be discriminated against, excluded from participation, denied benefits, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination. Any complaint concerned with an alleged noncompliance of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, should be presented to Mr. Kurt Mrocko, Renton Junior High School Principal, Huron School District, 32044 Huron River Drive, New Boston, Michigan 48164, telephone 734 / 782.2483.

TITLE IX NOTICE

Title IX is a federal law, which prohibits schools from discriminating on the basis of sex. In 1971 the Congress of the United States passed this law which ensures that educational programs and activities, including athletic activities, will be open to all students. If any person believes that Huron School District or any part of the school organization has not adequately applied the principles and/or regulations of Title IX or is in some way discriminatory on the basis of sex, a complaint may be brought to Mrs. Katrina Burnham, Assistant to the Superintendent, 734 / 782.2441.

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

Full Civil Rights, section 504 and Title IX, complaint procedures are available upon request. For a copy of the complaint procedures, contact Ms. Katrina Burnham at 734 / 782.2441.

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS ACT

All public school districts, including Huron School District, are mandated to comply with Public Act 328 of 1993, the Tobacco-Free Schools Act. This law was

enacted to protect children, school employees, and visitors from the dangerous effects of secondhand smoke. This law bans the use of tobacco products at all times in all buildings owned or operated by school districts. Additionally, the law bans the use of tobacco products on school grounds, except during weekends, on holidays, and after 6:00 PM on school days. This law is to be enforced by local police departments, and infractions carry a fine of \$50.00.

NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

M

"It is the policy of the Huron School District not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, or handicap in its educational programs, activities, or employment policies."

Inquiries regarding compliance and/or grievance procedures may be directed to Ms. Katrina Burnham, Civil Rights Coordinator, Office of the Superintendent, Huron School District.

STUDENT AND EMPLOYEE COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL DRUG-FREE SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITIES ACT POLICY

The following policy is developed and implemented to comply with requirements under the Federal Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989, PA 101-226. The use of illicit drugs and unlawful possession and use of alcohol is wrong and harmful. Compliance with the policy is mandatory for all students at Huron Schools. The unlawful possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students or employees on school premises or as any part of school activities at home or away is prohibited. Employees who violate this rule are subject to disciplinary sanctions {consistent with local, state, and federal laws, as well as negotiated employee contracts}, up to and including termination of employment and referral for prosecution. Sanctions may include reprimand, suspension, and/or termination of employment, and referral for evaluation of the problem and subsequent treatment by an appropriate agency. Students who violate this rule are subject to punishment under articles as specified in the Student Conduct Code for Huron Schools. Sanctions include referral to a law enforcement agency, referral for counseling, suspension, and/or possible expulsion from Huron Schools. The Health, Education and Social Studies curriculum present the legal, social, and health consequences of drug and alcohol use. Effective techniques for resisting peer pressure to use illicit drugs or alcohol shall be included as part of the drug education program. Students who are in need of drug and/or alcohol counseling may be referred to the building principal for evaluation of the problem and subsequent treatment by an appropriate agency. The policy was adopted by the Huron Board of Education on August 20, 1990.

STUDENT DIRECTORY INFORMATION {FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT OF 1974}

The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA), [20 U.S.C. Sec 1232g; Pub. L. No. 93-380] establishes procedures for access by parents and students and restricts the release of those records to third parties.

On January 20, 1992, the Huron School District Board of Education, at a regularly scheduled meeting, designated the following categories to be considered Student Directory Information:

1. Student's name and address

4. Dates of school attendance

2. Date of birth

5. Honors and awards received

3. Participation in school activities

6. Other similar information generally found in yearbooks

The School District may release information that it has designated as Student Directory Information without consent so long as the parent or adult student has not objected. The building principal is charged with the responsibility of maintaining and preserving the confidentiality of student records, and is responsible for granting access to records on the basis of the provisions of the law. If you object to the release of this information to third parties, please notify the principal of your child's school *in writing*. If a written objection is made, information regarding the student will not be released without prior written consent of the parent, quardian, or adult student.

Under Federal Law ESEA 1965, all public schools must provide military recruiters with names, addresses, and telephone listings of all students. The School District does not consider telephone numbers as "directory information." [STUDENT DIRECTORY INFORMATION UPDATE, July 25, 2005]

STUDENT AND EMPLOYEE SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

It is the policy of the Huron School District to maintain a learning environment and a workplace that is free from sexual harassment and discrimination for its students and employees. Sexual harassment is a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Michigan Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act and will not be tolerated by any person, in any form. This policy shall apply to all students, employees, Board members, or any person associated with Huron School District in their conduct and communication with students, employees, parents, and citizens when these individuals are on or off school premises while they are participating in school sponsored functions. Sexual harassment is defined {but not limited to} unwelcome sexual advances, requests, or pressure {subtle or overt} for sexual favors, engaging in improper physical contact {such as patting or pinching}, or making improper sexual comments {including sex oriented kidding}, creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive workplace or learning environment. A copy of the Sexual Harassment Policy and Complaint procedures in its entirety is available upon request. A complaint of conduct perceived to be sexual harassment should be immediately reported to the Building Principal, the Department Supervisor, or to Ms. Katrina Burnham, Assistant to the Superintendent, Huron School District. Retaliation against any person for complaining about sexual harassment, or participating in a sexual harassment investigation, is prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Complaints regarding discrimination may also be filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission in Washington, D.C., or with the Michigan Department of Civil Rights within 180 days of the alleged violation.

Letter of Understanding

between the Huron Education Association (MEA/NEA) and the Huron School District

It is agreed and understood by the Association and the Huron School District that the needed changes to the Section 125 Cafeteria Plan (Section 39 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement) shall be made to accommodate an insurance Premium Conversion for all HEA members per IRS regulations.

It is so agreed.		
Huran School Bistrict		1-1-2
By Masegrice	Dated	8/31/11
the Superinterdent		
Huron Education Association (MEA/NEA)		
By Jon Vera	Dated	R/31/11
m Dresdent HEA		